2017

ANNUAL REPORT
F O



CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the Directors (the “Directors”) of Sino Splendid Holdings Limited # Bl # % I
$RIZ IR B R 2 B (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief: (1) the information contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and no misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
in this annual report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this annual report have been arrived at
after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ARER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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166-168 Des Voeux Road Central,
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17M Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited

10th Floor, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Citibank N.A.
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

STOCK CODE
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS

HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets forth certain financial information of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) as of

the date for the years indicated:

MBREERERE

TRHEJNARTAREMBE R

A (FEFE A

£E ) RFREENETHBER

Operating results (HK$’000) REXE(THER)
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Revenue L 93,121 100,185
(Loss)/profit for the year FA(EE) aF (179,888) 115,200
Financial position (HK$’000) AR (FHET)
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Equity attributable to owners of ZN/NSIES Y DN
the Company 209,959 372,575
Total assets BEE 254,861 444,271
Net assets FEE 211,988 374,604
Financial statistics MK E
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
Current ratio’ T Eh b & 4.13 8.91
Total debt to total assets ratio? REFE LB EE L F 0.17 0.16
Return on total assets (%)’ 484 O ¥R (%) (70.58) 25.93
Return on sales (%)* $H & [B] T K (%) (193.18) 114.99
KEY FINANCIAL DATA FTEHKER
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—2—tHF T F ZFT-LF ZFAF T =F
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
B JBEN BN JEA JEM
(Loss)/earnings per share &% (EE)
— basic® B — B (46.62) 35.83 3.49 0.05 1.77
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ET BT BT BT BT
Net assets value BREEFES
per share® 0.55 1.16 0.81 3.95 7.70
° Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Notes:

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities.

Total debt to total assets ratio is calculated by dividing the total
indebtedness by total assets.

Return on total assets is calculated by dividing the profit for the
year by total assets.

Return on sales is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by
revenue.

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to owners of the Company for the year by weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year after adjustment
of the share consolidation effective on 10 June 2016.

Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing the net assets
by weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year. Net assets represent total assets less total liabilities.
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DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
EEWRES

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of the
Company, | hereby present the Group’s results for 2017 to our
shareholders.

In 2017, the travel media business had a drop in its results. The
Group will continue to concentrate on careful cost management.
Nonetheless, the good performance of special projects along
with the events organizing contributed positively to the value of
the Group.

The 2016 acquired financial magazine business kept on
contributing revenue to the Group in 2017. The Group will
closely monitor the business environment in this niche market
and strive to achieve increasing results in the coming years.

During the year, the performance of the securities investment
is not satisfactory. The Board will be more conscious on the
selection of securities with concrete growth potential.

The Group entered into the money lending business through
the acquisition of a wholly-owned subsidiary. This new business
segment is still in its budding stage and the Group expects it will
add more than average value to the Group.

e Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

Looking ahead, the Group believe the year 2018 will be a
year of uncertainty in the broader environment, featured by
changes in the global political landscape and fluctuation in
foreign currency market. Facing the moderate growth in the
market demand, intensifying competition, and slowdown in
offline trade, the Group will sharpen its strategies and modify
its business objectives in order to adapt to the ever-changing
environment.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, customers, suppliers and business
partners for their continuing support, and also to members of
the Board, the management, and employees who have been
dedicating to the development of the Group, for their invaluable
contributions.

Mr. Chow Chi Wa
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018

RESRRE R AR

EEREF

RE_T—N\F ZEREFEIEER
E %ﬁﬁﬁW%L%&% R :EE
HHTISERBEREE BHFME - KR

Tf’f%fiﬂl J*EE’JEE@Z $‘§lﬂﬂﬁﬂz R B &

RE AABERRESZ SR 2RBER T
P HEALEBEHANRAFARS
REROH B - TNEE I RO REH B RA
SEERVFHESREMNESTEKE

TEEBNES-

HITEFERITIHAAE
B —E—)\F=B=-+—H

— L FER 0



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBFWN D

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group are
principally engaged in (i) travel media operations with provision
of advertising services through the internet and travel magazines,
event organizing services and magazine publication (“Travel
Media Business”);
services in a well-known financial magazine distributed in
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) (“Financial Magazine
Business”); (iii) investment in securities (“Securities Investment”);
and (iv) money lending (“Money Lending Business”).

(ii) provision of contents and advertising

The Group’s total revenue decreased HK$7.1 million or 7.1%,
from HK$100.2 million last year to HK$93.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 primarily due to the revenue drop
from Travel Media Business.

Gross profit of the Group was HK$44.7 million, representing a
decrease of 7.8% or HK$3.8 million as compared with HK$48.5
million in 2016. Gross profit margin for the year reached
approximately 48.0% (2016: 48.4%), representing a decrease of
0.4% over the last year.

The Group recorded other income, gains and losses in the net
loss amount of HK$187.6 million during the year, representing
a decrease of HK$347.1 million or 217.6% as compared with
HK$159.5 million gain in the corresponding period of 2016,
which was mainly due to loss on held-for-trading investments in
2017.

The selling and distribution costs decreased by HK$0.3 million
to HK$14.5 million during the year (2016: HK$14.8 million),
representing a decrease of 2.0% against the year of 2016. The
administrative expenses increased by HK$0.9 million to HK$48.9
million (2016: HK$48.0 million), representing an increase of
1.9% over the last year.

As a result, the loss attributable to owners of the Company

was HK$179.9 million as compared with a profit of HK$115.2
million in 2016.

e Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Travel Media Business

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Travel Media
Business recorded a revenue of HK$70.4 million, decreased by
23.0% or HK$21.0 million as compared with that of HK$91.4
million in 2016. This amount represented 75.6% of the Group’s
total revenue for the year under review.

The business recorded a segment profit of HK$8.9 million this
year, representing a decrease of HK$10.2 million or 53.4% as
compared with that of HK$19.1 million in last year.

Industry Review

Economists are of the view that Travel & Tourism is a key sector
for economic development and job creation throughout the
world. Despite the ever-increasing and unpredictable challenges
such as geopolitical instability, health pandemics and to natural
disasters, Travel & Tourism continued to show its resilience,
contributing direct GDP growth and supporting additional jobs
in the sector.

Asia is arguably more diverse, in the economic sense, than any
other region, with each country offering a very different story to
tell. Overall, economic performance in the Asia-Pacific region
has been monotonous and the degree of economic impact has
differed from sector to sector within the industry.

2017 has proven to be more challenging than the year before
for the media and advertising business, with many organisations
continuing to tighten their advertising budget or switching to
alternative media that leverage on the internet. Print media
continues to come under intense pressure. However, with TTG’s
strong brand and reputation, and its dedicated team of people,
the group was able to create new opportunities and new revenue
ideas.

Even with all odds and challenges in 2017, the group performed
considerably well by finishing the year ahead of the budgeted
full year profit. Full year budget for 2017 has taken into
consideration of the overall business sentiment in the regional
and global economies as well as the non-recurrent ATF project
in 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBFWN D

Resulting Impact on TTG Business and Performance in
2017

A&P spend remained lackluster, characterised by a decrease
in overall run-of-page (ROP) print advertising revenue from
the main source markets, as businesses chose to be cautious
amid the current subdued outlook.

Foreign exchange losses: the strengthening of the Singapore
dollars has resulted in forex losses in 2017 compared to the
year before. Most of TTG’s costs were in Singapore dollars
whereas our revenue were mainly in American dollars.

Online advertising continues to attract more interest from
our advertisers as opposed to print advertising.

Careful cost management on overheads, contribution from
Special Projects and Events has helped with TTG’s top and
bottom line profits for the year.

The overall dip in top line and bottom line in 2017
compared to 2016 was mainly due to the absence of the
ATF management contract in 2017

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Travel Trade Publishing Group

The Special Projects

Besides the regular print and online publications, the Travel
Trade Publishing Group completed the following 14 special
projects in 2017:

e ATF 2017 Show Daily
ATFZZ—+LFREAR:

e |ITB Berlin 2017 Show Daily:
ITB Berlin —T—+FREARK:

e IT&CM and CTW China 2017 Show Daily
IT&CM B CTW China —T—+FREH K

e ITB China 2017 Show Dally
ITB China=ZF—tHFREHAR:

e TTG China Travel Awards 2017 Supplement:
TTG Chinajikiiz K8 = F — - F 38 :

e ASEAN Cruises Supplement:
REHmREET

e ASEAN Hotel Supplement:

BBEET:

e PATA Travel Mart 2017 Show Daily
PATA Travel Mart —E —tFREH K :

e  TTGmice Planner 2017/2018:
TTGmice #5%2017/2018 :

e IT&CM Asia 2017 Show Daily
IT&CM Asia —F—tFREA R

e |TB Asia and CTW AP 2017 Show Daily
ITB Asia XCTWAP—_ZE—tFRERAH:

e CITM 2017 Show Daily
CTIM=_ZF—tFREBA®H:

e TTG Travel Awards 2017 Supplement:
TTGIREXRE T — L F3E T

e Asian Tourism Expert Guide 2017/2018:
M k3% B 5K $5#2017/2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBFWN D

Media Partnership/Sponsorship

With TTG’s current leadership position, market presence and
as part of our on-going marketing and promotional efforts to
be involved and engaged in the marketplace, we were able to
part-take and enter into industry partnerships with renowned
global travel trade events and organisations in 2017. Our 2017
media partnerships were:

Asian Federation of Exhibition and Convention Associations
(AFECA)

Asian Federation of Exhibition and Convention Associations
(AFECA)

CNBC Asia

CNBC Asia

SACEOS MICE Business Directory

SACEOS MICE Business Directory

ASEAN Tourism Forum (ATF) 2017, Singapore

ASEAN Tourism Forum (ATF) 2017 * ¥7 03

FITUR, Madrid, Spain

FITUR AT HEE

SATTE, New Delhi, India

SATTE  EE#HE 2

Asia-Pacific Incentives and Meetings EXPO (AIME),
Melbourne Australia

Asia-Pacific Incentives and Meetings EXPO (AIME) -
BN 2R A

Aviation Festival Asia

Aviation Festival Asia

Guangzhou International Travel Fair (GITF),
Guangzhou, China

BMNBERRERES (GITF) » 1 B EM

International Luxury Travel Market (ILTM) Japan, Tokyo, Japan

International Luxury Travel Market (ILTM) Japan® H KER

Hotel Investment Conference Asia Pacific (HICAP)
Update, Singapore

Hotel Investment Conference Asia Pacific (HICAP)
Update ' 7 I3

ASAE, Seoul, South Korea

ASAE B @

Singapore Rugby Seven, Singapore

Singapore Rugby Seven * ¥7 Il 3%

Arabian Travel Market (ATM), Dubai, UAE

Arabian Travel Market (ATM) - P B 2§+ B

WTTC Global Summit, Bangkok, Thailand

WTTC Global Summit® &ZE £ A&

Cruise Lines International Association (CLIA)

Cruise Lines International Association (CLIA)

Q Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ITB China, Shanghai, China

ITB China " R Bl /&

IMEX Frankfurt, Frankfurt, Germany

IMEX Frankfurt #2BLER 218

WTM Connect Asia, Penang, Malaysia

WTM Connect Asia * 55 2R 78 22 18 35k

Hong Kong Exhibition & Convention Industry Association
(HKECIA), Hong Kong

BEREGEXME (HKECIA) - BE

International Luxury Travel Market (ILTM) Asia,
Shanghai, China

International Luxury Travel Market (ILTM) Asia* B _E/&

International Travel EXPO (ITE), Hong Kong

BERRER (ITE) - &E

Travel Trade Maldives, Maldives

Travel Trade Maldives - B K

Singapore MICE Forum, Singapore

Singapore MICE Forum ' ¥ il #

Malaysia Business Events Week by MyCEB, Malaysia

F MyCEB = ## #) Malaysia Business Events Week * f5 2K 78 38

PATA Travel Mart (PTM), Macau

PATA Travel Mart (PTM ) * J&F]

IMEX America, Las Vegas, USA

IMEX America » 3¢ B H B 4 0

Global Tourism Economy Forum (GTEF), Macau

SRR 3 A8 P w38 (GTEF) )RS

Hotel Investment Conference Asia Pacific (HICAP), Hong Kong

Hotel Investment Conference Asia Pacific(HICAP) * & /&
ITB Asia, Singapore
ITB Asia ' T h13%
Seatrade Cruise Asia Pacific, Shanghai, China
Seatrade Cruise Asia Pacific* F B /&
Beijing International Travel Mart (BITM), Beijing, China
IERERKERSE (BITM) - REIER
China International Travel Mart (CITM), Kunming, China
FEBIRIKER S (CITM) - R E R
Wuhan International Tourism EXPO (WITE), Wuhan, China
RZEBEEREEER (WITE) @ R B E
Asia Hotel & Tourism Investment Conference
Asia Hotel & Tourism Investment Conference
Chengdu International Tourism EXPO, Chengdu, China
P ER B R e 0 18 B8 g -+ B AR
International LuxuryTravelMarket (ILTM) Cannes,
Cannes, Australia
International LuxuryTravelMarket (ILTM) Cannes -
SE M Cannes
Be@Penang, Peng, Malaysia
Be@Penang * 5 2K 78 ok 1&
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBFWN D

TTG Events Group
TTG Events group organised/managed 5 trade events and was
involved in the following roadshows/events in 2017:

e |IT&CM China:
TEERERKETES

e CTW China:
TEERERAS

e Meet Taiwan Networking Event:
Meet Taiwan Networking Event :

e Singapore Gifts Show:
Singapore Gifts Show :

e |IT&CM Asia CTW Asia-Pacific 2017 Preview Reception:
IT&CM Asia CTW Asia-Pacific 201 7TE R BF &

e [T&CM Asia:
IT&CM Asia :

e CTW Asia-Pacific:
CTW Asia-Pacific :

e Japan Meeting Showcase:
Japan Meeting Showcase :

e Corporate Travel Forum 2017:
Corporate Travel Forum 2017 :

e Cambodia Travel Mart:
Cambodia Travel Mart :

e Osaka MICE Showcase:
Osaka MICE Showcase :

Business/Consolidation

In keeping with the change in business needs, the group has also
implemented some changes to the Sales & Marketing structure
to maximise opportunity by adopting an integrated sales &
marketing approach rather than sales by individual by product.
This new structure should help see better results for the group in
2018.

Financial Magazine Business

Revenue from this business was HK$22.4 million, which
contributed 24.1% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
under review. Segmental loss of this business during the year
amounted to HK$9.0 million which was primarily attributable to
amortisation charges of intangible asset acquired as a result of
business combination which was non-cash in nature.

Securities Investment

As at 31 December 2017, total market value for the
held-for-trading investments of the Group was approximately
HK$13.4 million and recorded loss on disposal and fair value
loss of approximately HK$228.1 million.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Money Lending Business

Revenue from this business was HK$0.3 million, which
accounted for 0.3% of the Group's total revenue for the year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, total market value for the
held-for-trading investments of the Group was approximately
HK$13.4 million, representing equity securities listed in Hong
Kong. The Board considers that investment with market value
accounting for more than 5% of the Group’s total assets as at
31 December 2017 as significant investment.

Details of the top two held-for-trading investments, in terms of
market value as at 31 December 2017, are as follows:

BEBFNWN D

MEEK
2 E IS A300,00008 T (EAEE
NEFE 4B EHETEMN0.3% ©

BEARE
RZE—t&F+-_A=+—8 ~5£E#
EEEIRE ZHATEL A13,400,0007% 7T
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For the year ended
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Gain/(loss)

Market ~ Proportion on fair value

value as at  to the total  changes of
31 December assets of the Dividend
Stock Code 2017 the Group investments received
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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ACQUISITION OF NEW BUSINESS

Acquisition of Money Lending Business

Sino Impact Group Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement with an independent third
party to purchase 100% of the issued share capital of Nation
Wealth Limited (the “Nation Wealth”) at a consideration of
HK$380,000. Nation Wealth is principally engaged in the money
lending business.

PROSPECT

The outlook for 2018 is overshadowed by global events, the
economic growth of advanced economies will be modest and
patchy. This, coupled with new uncertainties brought about
by political changes in many parts of the world and rising
protectionist sentiments, will further complicate the situation
and render the global economic outlook volatile.

In response, the Group will continue to sharpen its strategies
and monitor the external environment and internal resources
carefully to meet the Group’s business development.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally financed its operations with its internally
generated cash flows. The Group’s total equity was HK$212.0
million as at 31 December 2017, representing a decrease of
HK$162.6 million as compared with that of HK$374.6 million
as at 31 December 2016. Total assets amounted to HK$254.9
million as at 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$444.3 million), of
which HK$111.9 million (2016: HK$81.0 million) was bank
balances and cash, HK$65.4 million (2016: HK$62.5 million)
was available-for-sale investments, HK$13.4 million (2016:
HK$243.9 million) was held-for-trading investments.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital structure

As of 31 December 2017, the Group’s consolidated net assets
was HK$212.0 million, representing a decrease of HK$162.6
million as compared with that of HK$374.6 million in 2016.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has 385,820,923 shares
of HK$0.01 each in issue.

On 22 November 2017 (after trading hours), the Company
and the Placing Agent entered into the Placing Agreement
pursuant to which the Placing Agent agreed to place, on a best
efforts basis, to not less than six independent Placees for up to
64,304,184 new Shares at a price of HK$0.20 per Placing Share.

On 13 December 2017, the conditions of the Placing have been
fulfilled and the completion of the Placing took place, where
a total of 64,300,000 Placing Shares have been successfully
placed by the Placing Agent to not less than six Placees pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
22 November 2017, 24 November 2017 and 13 December
2017, respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the net proceeds of approximately
HK$12.51 million is not yet utilised.

Charges on the Group’s assets

There was no charges on the Group’s assets as at 31 December
2017 and 2016.

Debt structure

The Group’s total borrowings from financial institutions were
zero as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. The Group’s total bank
balances and cash amounted to HK$111.9 million as at 31
December 2017, which increased HK$30.9 million as compared
with that of HK$81.0 million as at 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and any
related hedges

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Renminbi, Singapore dollars,
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. During the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had not entered
into any hedging arrangements. However, the management
will continue to monitor closely its foreign currency exposure
and requirements and to arrange for hedging facilities when
necessary.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liability as at
31 December 2017 and 2016.

Employee information

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 73 (2016: 68) full time
employees, of which 12 (2016: 17) were based in Hong Kong,
8 (2016: 2) in China, 52 (2016: 48) in Singapore, and 1 (2016:
1) in Malaysia. The Group’s employees are remunerated largely
based on their performance and experience, alongside with
the current industry practices. The Group has introduced share
option scheme to recognize the contributions of the employees
to the growth of the Group. The scheme has been or will be
amended from time to time to take into account changes in
market conditions and the GEM Listing Rules. Remuneration
packages of employees include salaries, insurance, medical
cover, mandatory provident fund, discretionary bonuses and
share option (if any).

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENSHREEERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER & JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

Chow Chi Wa

Mr. Chow, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive Director
in March 2013; as Company Secretary in August 2013 and as
Chief Executive Officer in November 2013 of the Company. He
holds a master degree in Corporate Governance from the Open
University of Hong Kong and a master degree in Corporate
Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has
been a Non-executive Director of Cybernaut International
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1020) since November 2013.
Mr. Chow is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He
possesses extensive experience in finance and accounting.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wang Tao

Mr. Wang, aged 60, was graduated from the Hebei University
with a bachelor’s degree of Engineering in 1982. He has
accumulated more than 20 years of experience in investment
and construction management. Mr. Wang was the deputy general
managers of a private real estate development company located
in Beijing since 2004. Mr. Wang was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 29 September 2015.

Yang Xingan

Mr. Yang, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in January 2015. He graduated from the Wuhan
University of Science and Technology, majoring in industrial
and civil architecture. He is a registered constructor in the
People’s Republic of China, a senior engineer and a member
of the Architectural Society of China. Mr. Yang has over 20
years of management experience in construction and real estate
development. He joined Hubei State-owned Huanggai Hu
Property Development Company (j#3t4& Bl & & & B 2 5 &
F# T2 2 7A]) as a technician in July 1993 and was holding the
position as a general manager by the time he left in February
2001. Between March 2001 and July 2005, Mr. Yang was the
project manager of Archibal Decoration Co., Ltd. (& 3| 77 % 7 %%
#haZ st T AR A F) . From August 2005 to February 2009, he
joined Shenzhen Yingfeng Decoration Engineering Co., Limited
(RYITmRBEMHTEBRAA)as a partner. Since March
2009, Mr. Yang has been the Legal Representative and Chairman
of Jiangsu Anxin Digital Property Co., Limited (VL # & L& F
EXARAA).

RESRRE R AR

HOTEE THRAZREELQT
wWE

BAEE

BEE 495 R-_E—=ZF=F XTI
BARBNITES IREFNAM+—
REZEAERRBIZ AR MERITHRAEH
HRFEEEAAREBLEERBELIENMK
ERRBIRELESRMELEM -FHEZ
TE——F+—ARHIEERERNBIERA
FRAaE (AR :1020) ZIEHITESE -
FIRAEETBGTMAS 2 EMestamkR
BETelmAeERSE - FHADRE
BHEWEASREFIMERITRAEBRE
EE-AXERBEREH T EHEE S

BITES

&

FRE 605 N—ANZFEXRAIL
RE BEIRBTSBM -FNRKRE BE
TREETEERB20F&R -TREH
—ETMFERERIE R —RILAFGHER
NREIEERIAKEE - FRER_T—HF
NAZTHhBEEBZEERRRRNTES -

B

BEE 48 R E—HF— AEZT
BARBNTES HEENREREK
B FrETXERRBAREEZ - FAFEAR
HAB M — R ZEEN =R TR EF
HEfZ2ee 8 - B LtERBEEREM
EXRETEEESO00EEBELR - BN
—AN=ZFLAMAHILERE = Z N
BEERZEIRERAREARMAE K&
R-ET—F_HAFERCEEARBRKE -
R-_ZZE—F=ZAE_ZTZTHF+A B
EERBRITMHHELMEZFT LIEBERAA
LEEKEB - R_EEAFNAEZZEE
NEZA FEMAFIMREBREMTES
RARIEEEERH BT NhF=A"
BRE—BREIHRATLHFTFEERRA
RAIZEAREKEREER-

— T FFR



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Yang Shuyan

Ms. Yang, aged 37, is a certified public accountant in the
People’s Republic of China. She graduated from the South
China University of Technology with a dual bachelor’s degree
in E-commerce and Technical English. She has over ten years of
working experience in auditing and finance. She had worked in
KPMG. She has served as the financial controller of a project
investment company in Shenzhen since October 2015. Ms. Yang
was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director and
chairlady of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 29 May 2015.

Zhang Xiaoguang

Mr. Zhang, aged 62, is a Certified Planner in the People’s
Republic of China. He studied in the Northwest University ( 78
JE K2 ) with a major in Chinese. He currently serves as the
general manager of RIIT RETTIHER FR 2 A (Shenzhen
Tian Heng Marketing Consultancy Company Limited*). He
is responsible for corporate strategic planning, marketing,
investment and management in real estate projects. Prior to that,
Mr. Zhang has accumulated more than 25 years of experience
in corporate strategic planning, marketing and consultancy
services from various corporations. Mr. Zhang was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of each
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 29 May 2015.

Lee Yim Wah

Ms. Lee, aged 45, she has over 20 years of experience in the
trading industry and has rich knowledge in sales and marketing.
Ms. Lee was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 31 March 2076.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Darren Ng Hung Meng

Mr. Ng, aged 62, is the Managing Director of TTG Asia Media
Pte Ltd. He is a veteran in the travel and tourism industry
and has a wealth of experience of more than 30 years in the
business. Having joined the company (formerly known as Asian
Business Press and Miller Freeman Pte Ltd) since 1984, he
is credited with successfully growing TTG regionally. Under
Darren’s leadership, TTG achieved consistent organic growth,
establishing profitable portfolios in event management, tourism
and travel trade publishing. His accomplishments also include
expanding TTG's geographic presence across Asia.

Mr. Ng has also been at the helm of multitude of incumbent
committees and associations in the travel and tourism industry
as council and advisory member. He is the current Chairman
of PATA Singapore Chapter (since 2008) and is presently an
Industry Council Member of Pacific Asia Travel Association, the
Appointed Conference Ambassador to Shanghai City (from 2009
to 2014) and previously a Member of the Asia Pacific Advisory
Council to Meeting Professionals International (MPI). He also
served as the President of Skal International Singapore from
20071 to 2003.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in travel media operations with
provision of advertising services through the internet and travel
magazines, event organizing services and magazine publication;
provision of contents and advertising services in a well-known
financial magazine distributed in the PRC, investment in
securities and money lending. Details of the principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in the note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 is set out in “Director’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year are set out in “Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income” of
this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out in “Financial
Summary” of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of
the Company is set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of movements during the year in the share options is

set out in note 32 and “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” section
contained in this directors’ report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s by-law, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” and in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2017, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to HK$52,489,000 (2016: HK$98,985,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” in this directors’ report and note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017 or subsisted at the end of the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to approximately HK$10,000 (2016: HK$4,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, sales attributable to
the Group’s largest customer accounted for 9% of the Group’s
total sales and aggregate sales attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 23% of the Group's total
sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier accounted for 15% of the Group’s
total purchases and aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 35% of the Group's
total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, or
their respective associates, or shareholders owning more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial
interests in any of the five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Chow Chi Wa (Chief Executive Officer)
Wang Tao

Yang Xingan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yang Shuyan

Zhang Xiaoguang

Lee Yim Wah

In accordance with Article 85 of the Company’s articles of
association, Ms. Lee Yim Wah and Ms. Yang Shuyan shall retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Emoluments of the Directors, Chief Executive and the
five highest paid individuals

Details of the Directors” emoluments and of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
remuneration committee of the Company with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities, performance and the results of
the Group.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out in “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

All non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 2 years.

g Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Director, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-law and subject to the relevant
provisions therein, the Directors, Company Secretary and other
officers shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they may
incur by execution of their duties in their respective offices or
otherwise in relation thereto.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board is not
aware of any Director or the management and their respective
close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) to
have an interest in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
a connected entity of that Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or
at anytime during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the financial year.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors or chief executive
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required to be recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating
to the securities transactions by the directors.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, so far as it known by or otherwise
notified to any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
the particulars of the corporate or person (other than a Director
or the chief executive of the Company) which had 5% or more
interests and short positions in the shares and the underlying
shares as recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

Name Number of shares
"L BB B EE
Mr. Chen Ying Zhen (Note 1) 90,943,126
PREBER A (MatT)

QIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED (Note 1) 90,943,126

RRERBRAR (HF1)

Note 1:  Mr. Chen Ying Zhen is a substantial shareholder, director and

the ultimate beneficial owner of QIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company
had not been notified of any person (other than Directors or
chief executive of the Company) who has an interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

RESRRE R AR

ESEWE

TERRRADARG RABRK
NeEBERAE

R_ZE—+&+_HA=+—H BEMFE
ERARNAREITEHABMASK AR M
NEME BEEFEHFLXAEIKRIEIZ 6K
GFEMECMATRE 8% A D RABERGS
5%k A EREERARREES AL (K
NEIBEEREEITHRABRIN FBWT

READAEBBERZER

Percentage of

Number of issued share
underlying shares capital
HERTRE
MHERMEE Bot
- 23.57%
- 23.57%

Mz BRABRLERBREERBRAFZ

TBERR EFRBERESHERA-

BREXHBEEN RZF—LF+_-H
=t—H ARARLEEZHEMAL (K
NAEBEFEXNREGTRABRINRARF]
ZENEEERDFHREREREZE S NAE
fERPIZE XV B2 B30 B AR E 2 HE s Bk
KRB BN ARBIREES M E K
PIF336IKA T HFE < B i it 2 #E s 20K

X

i

m

— T FFR a



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013 Share
Option Scheme”) on 31 December 2013, which was approved
by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on the same date. The 2013 Share Option
Scheme will expire on 31 December 2023.

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant share options to eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth of the
Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible means to
reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the
eligible participants.

According to the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the Board may
grant share options to eligible participants as defined in the
2013 Share Option Scheme and the Board has its sole discretion
considers eligible for the 2013 Share Option Scheme on the
basis of their contribution to the development and growth of the
Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all share options to be granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company on the date of approval and adoption of the
2013 Share Option Scheme provided that the Company may at
any time seek approval from the shareholders to refresh the limit
to 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval by the
shareholders in general meeting where such limit is refreshed.
Share options previously granted under any share option schemes
of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
in accordance with such schemes or exercised options) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue as at the date of grant unless such grant has been
duly approved by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in
general meeting at which the relevant eligible participant and his
associates were abstained from voting. Share options granted to
substantial shareholders or Independent Non-executive Directors
or any of their respective associates in any 12-month period in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital on the
date of grant and with a value in excess of HK$5 million must
be approved in advance by the shareholders.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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Options granted must be taken up within 7 days from the date
of the offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Board. There is no general
requirement on the minimum period for which option must be
held before an option can be exercised. All options must be
exercised within 10 years from the date of grant of options.

The exercise price is determined by the Board and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.

No share option has been granted under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2017.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme of the Group and the employer’s
pension costs charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year are set out
in notes 11 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued
shares were held by the public) as required by Rule 17.38A of
the GEM Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this
report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, except for those disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had no transactions
with its related parties.

The Directors conducted review of the related party transactions
of the Group during the year and were not aware any transaction
requiring disclosure of connected transactions in accordance
with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of
business operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a
balance between the quality and efficiency of our services and
the minimization of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental
degradation. Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive
approach to effect internal and external communications by
means of telephone, emails and conferences or such other
communication means which are efficient yet environmentally
friendly. Also, the Group are able to minimize physical travelling
and printing.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance
with such requirements. The Company is not aware of any non-
compliance in any material respect with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important
assets and stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and
support are of values at all times. The Group regularly reviews
compensation and benefits policies accordingly to industry
benchmark as well as the individual performance of employees.
Other fringe benefits, mandatory provident fund and share
options (if any) are provided to retain loyal employees aiming at
forming a professional staff and management team that can bring
the Group to higher level of success.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that maintain good relationship with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. Our business model is to maintain and build up on
our strong relationship with our client base. Our mission is to
provide the finest services to our customers and the Group is
constantly looking ways to improve customer relation through
enhanced services. Also, the Group has maintained good
relationship with the suppliers to ensure their continued support
to the Group in the foreseeable future.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited (the “Elite Partners”) was appointed as
auditor of the Company on 7 January 2016.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 were audited by Elite Partners.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Elite Partners as the auditor of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
Chow Chi Wa
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is always committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. Save as disclosed below, the Company
throughout the year 2017 has fully complied with the applicable
code provisions in the CG Code and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange.

In respect of A.6.7 of the CG Code, the executive Director,
Mr. Chow Chi Wa was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company due to sickness.

In respect of C2.5 of the CG Code, the Board has engaged
an independent internal control review advisor to perform
the internal audit function and conduct the annual review on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Board will continue to review the need for an
internal audit function annually.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of the business affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders value.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation.

The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last election but as between
persons who became Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. A retiring Director shall retain office until the
close of the meeting at which he retires, and shall be eligible for
re-election thereat. All non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of 2 years and are subject to rotational retirement and
re-election in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence in writing from each of the INEDs pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent.
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There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) between members of the Board.
Biographies of Directors are set out in “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. The
present Board has experience, expertise and qualifications in
respect of marketing, management, accounting and finance.
One out of the three INEDs possesses recognized professional
qualification in accounting.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of the business affairs and the overall
performance of the Group. The functions performed by the Board
include but not limited to formulate the Group’s business plans
and strategies, decide all significant financial (including major
capital expenditure) and operational issues, develop, monitor
and review the Group’s corporate governance practices. The
Board may delegate certain functions to senior management if
and when considered appropriate from time to time. The senior
management is mainly responsible for the execution of the
business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and
assigned to it from time to time.

The Board has adopted a set of guidelines on matters that
requires its approval to achieve a clear division of the
responsibilities of the Board and the management. Matters
requiring the Board’s approval include, among others, review
of overall policies and objectives for corporate contribution and
approval of corporate plan of the Company and any significant
change thereto, investment plans which would involve
significant commitments of financial, technological or human
resources, or would involve significant risks for the Company,
significant sales, transfer, or other disposition of property or
asset, significant change in policies of Board, major organization
change, approval of the annual report, and review of interim
and quarterly financial and operating results, other matters
relating to the Company’s business which in the judgment of
the management are of such significance as to merit the Board’s
consideration, and adoption of such policies and the taking
of such other actions as the Board considers to be in the best
interests of the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance in respect of legal action against Directors
and officers.

Chairman and chief executive

The positions of the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer shall held by separate individuals with a view
to maintain an effective segregation of duties with respect to the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the
Group's business.
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The chairman shall ensure that the Board works effectively
and discharges its responsibilities, ensure that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established, encourage
all Directors to make a full and active contribution to the Board’s
affairs and take the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Company and that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner, all Directors
have been consulted about any matters proposed for inclusion
in the agenda. The chairman has delegated the responsibility
of drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the
Company Secretary. The Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”) is
responsible for strategic planning and implementation, sourcing
and meeting with potential business partners and looking for
business opportunities for the Group, client development,
recruiting, staff development, collaboration across the affiliated
company network and looking for opportunities to cross-fertilise
best practices and reporting to the Board regarding the Group’s
overall progress.

The Board’s chairlady, Ms. Xu Yun resigned on 21 December
2015. The Group is still seeking replacement for the position.

Board meeting and attendance

The Board conducts regularly scheduled meetings on a quarterly
basis. Ad-hoc meetings are convened when circumstances
require. The Board held 12 meetings during the financial year
ended 31 December 2017 to consider, among other things,
reviewing and approving the quarterly, interim, annual results
and payment of dividend of the Group. The Directors attend
meetings in person or via telephone conference, as permitted
under the articles of association of the Company.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in
2017 is set out below:

Directors

BEx

Executive Directors HITES

Chow Chi Wa Bliots

Wang Tao TF

Yang Xingan %2
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Yang Shuyan %R

Zhang Xiaoguang SRR

Lee Yim Wah o

g Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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Number of Meetings

HERE EBRE

12/12
12/12
11/12

12/12
12/12
12/12
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The Company Secretary attends the Board/Board committees
meetings. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that Board/Board committees
procedures are observed and advising the Board/Board
committees on compliance matters.

All Directors were given the opportunities to include matters to
be discussed in the agenda of Board/Board committees meetings.
The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing these
agendas and, where appropriate, take into account any matters
proposed by each Director/committee member for inclusion in
the agenda. The Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and
keep records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all
Board meetings/committees meetings.

Directors’ continuous training and development

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the vyear,
Directors are provided with updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects regularly to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development (the “CPD”) to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, all Directors had participated in the CPD
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills by reading
materials and/or attending training courses, seminars or
workshops organized by professional bodies on corporate
governance or updated on laws, rules and regulations relating to
the roles, functions and duties of a Director.
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The individual record of each Director who received training for
the year is summarized as follows:

Directors

E=E

Executive Directors HITES
Chow Chi Wa B
Wang Tao =
Yang Xingan B Rz

Independent Non-executive Directors B Ik HTES

Yang Shuyan 15 MR
Zhang Xiaoguang REBE
Lee Yim Wah U

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has appointed a number of committees to discharge
the Board functions. Sufficient resources are provided to enable
the Board committees to undertake their specific roles. The
respective role, responsibilities and activities of each Board
committees are set out below:

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee that
management (i) has maintained the reliability and integrity of
the accounting policies and financial reporting and disclosure
practices of the Group; (ii) has established and maintained
processes to assure that effective risk management and internal
control systems are functioning within the Group; and (iii) has
established and maintained processes to assure compliance by
the Group with all applicable laws, regulations and corporate
policy. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the Company’s website.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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The committee comprised three Independent Non-executive
Directors and chaired by Ms. Yang Shuyan. The composition
of the Audit Committee during the year as well as attendance
record of each of the committee members are as follows:

Directors

BE=x

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHBITES
Yang Shuyan 15 M ER

Zhang Xiaoguang BN

Lee Yim Wah FU

By invitation of the Audit Committee, other Directors and senior
management may also attend the meetings. The Company
Secretary prepared full minutes of the Audit Committee
meetings with details of discussions and decisions reached.
Sufficient resources are made available to the committee when
independent legal or professional advice is required. The Audit
Committee members meet with the external auditor twice a year.

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2017:

e Reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements and
the annual results announcement of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2016;

e Reviewed the interim unaudited consolidated financial
statements and the interim results announcement of the
Company for the 6 months ended 30 June 2017;

e Reviewed the quarterly unaudited consolidated financial
statements and quarterly results announcement of the
Company for the 3 months ended 31 March 2017 and 9
months ended 30 September 2017 respectively;

e Reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
Company’s external auditor;

e Reviewed the Group’s risk management and internal control
policies; and

e Reviewed the Group’s accounting principles and practices,

compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and statutes, and
financial reporting matter.
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Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i)
review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes; (ii) identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; and (iii) make recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors in particular the
chairman and the chief executive officer. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s
website.

The committee comprised three Independent Non-executive
Directors and chaired by Ms. Yang Shuyan. The composition of
the Nomination Committee during the year as well as attendance
record of each of the committee members are as follows:

Directors

Ex

Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Yang Shuyan 15 M ER

Zhang Xiaoguang REE

Lee Yim Wah FU

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2017:

e Reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board; and

e Reviewed the retirement of Directors by rotation and the
re-appointment of retiring Directors at the AGM.

Board Diversity Policy

During the year, the Board adopted a Board diversity policy
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity
of Board members. It endeavors to ensure that the Board had
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s business.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The Company will also take into account factors based
on its own business model and specific needs from time to time.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted the model to delegate the
determination of the remuneration packages of executive
directors and senior management to the remuneration
committee. The committee is responsible for formulating and
recommending remuneration policy to the Board and reviewing
and making recommendations on compensation-related issues.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website.

The committee comprised three Independent Non-executive
Directors and chaired by Ms. Yang Shuyan. The composition
of the Remuneration Committee during the year as well as
attendance record of each of the committee members are as
follows:

Directors

BEx

Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Yang Shuyan 1% M e

Zhang Xiaoguang SRR

Lee Yim Wah FU

The following is a summary of the work of the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2017:

e Reviewed the Group’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management;

e Reviewed and recommended to the Board the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management; and

e Ensured that no director or any of his/her associates are
involved in deciding his’/her own remuneration.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(other than the Directors) whose particulars are contained
in the section headed “Biographical details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report for the year ended
31 December 2017 by band is set out below:

Remuneration band (in HK$)

< B (A8 TEHE)
2,000,001 to 2,500,000

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going
concern basis, with supporting assumptions or qualifications as
necessary. In preparing the accounts for the three months ended
31 March 2017, six months ended 30 June 2017, nine months
ended 30 September 2017 and the year ended 31 December
2017, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

Auditor’s remuneration

The external audit provides an objective assessment of the
financial information presented by the management, and is
considered one of the essential elements to ensure effective
corporate governance. During the year, the fee charged by Elite
Partners CPA Limited for audit services is HK$430,000.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The internal control
system includes safeguard of the interest of shareholders and the
Group's assets. The systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has engaged an independent internal control review
advisor to conduct an annual review on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems. Review of the
Group’s internal controls covering major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions
of different systems.

No internal audit team has been set up during the year since the
Group's size and structure is small and simple and the Board is
of the opinion that it is more cost effective to appoint an external
independent service provider to carry out internal audit function
for the Group. However, the Board will continue to review the
need for an internal audit function annually.
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The Group adopts a risk management framework which
comprises the following processes:

— Identify significant risk in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the
Group’s business;

—  Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and

—  Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group formulated the policies and procedures of risk
management and internal control as follows:

—  The Group established an organisational structure with clear
operating and reporting procedures, lines of responsibility
and delegated authority;

—  Each operating subsidiary maintains internal controls and
procedures appropriate to its structure;

—  Relevant executive Directors and senior management have
been delegated with specific accountability for monitoring
the performance of designated business operating units; and

— A systematic review of the financial and business processes
in order to provide management on the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls. Where weaknesses are
identified in the system of internal controls, management
will evaluate and take necessary measures to ensure that
improvements are implemented.

The Board reviewed that the risk management and internal
control systems adopted by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 and considered that it was effective.

Dissemination of inside information

The Group has management control to ensure that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any officers
should be promptly identified, assessed and forwarded to the
Board (if appropriate).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

a. To determine, develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance;

b. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

c. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

e. To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS” SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings in
the securities (the “Required Standard of Dealings”) as set out in
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company, all of the
Directors confirmed that they had complied with or they were
not aware of any non-compliance with the Required Standard of
Dealings for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Company secretary

The Company Secretary of the Company assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and the Board
policy and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is
also responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. Mr. Chow Chi Wa, the Company Secretary of the
Company, has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update his skills and knowledge in 2017.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirement under paragraph O of the CG Code.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to article 59 of the articles of association of the
Company:

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
written requisition of any one or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that such
requisitionist(s) held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
The extraordinary general meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If the Board does
not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionist(s)
themselves may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a shareholder should lodge a written notice of proposal (the
“Proposal”) with detailed contact information at the Company’s
principal place of business. The request will be verified by the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon its
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Board
will be requested to include the Proposal in the agenda of the
general meeting.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

i R A
TXARBERE TSR ZMHIMKE
REMATHEZRRE THAZHEE-

FERRZERARRRENRE

RIBARRAMSIZAAES905:

BRERFRHAGMAEARRMERN—RHE
ZRRNOEMERAR EBEREFAKTA
REBBEMBEERARBNEEERER
RRABREBENERFERL (WEARFF
BAEZBERER)EMMER BEXFH
RARERERZ AAEFBARR BN SR
RAEPERAERERT IR T D Z—ZH
RBEAR BRI AGARERZBERKR
MEAANER MEEFFLTARANEXNER
ERkz BEF21IBARARKRE  RIFERA
AARRERTAEBRARRARE MHAE
RNEZSREERREREFRLKAELDN
BER ARARBIMBERAEN-

RRRARELREZBBZERF

RNARBIRRRE LIRE2EE WRA
NEmMRERZERZ ([EF])  ERFA
BGER RERARAZETELE I -
ARAEAARR ZBNBEELEED
RIZEZER RNESKNIBF B0 R E
RLBRBREREER BEXEFS
ERRRENZEREAMARZE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the nature
of the Proposal as follows:

a. Notice in writing of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 20 clear business days if the Proposal requires approval
by way of a special resolution or an ordinary resolution of
the Company in an AGM.

b.  Notice in writing of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days if the Proposal requires approval
by way of a special resolution of the Company in an EGM.

c. Notice in writing of not less than 14 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of an ordinary resolution of the Company
in an EGM.

Procedures for directing shareholders enquires to the
Board

Shareholders may send their written enquiries to the Company,
for the attention of Company Secretary, by fax: (852) 2237 7227,
or mail to 8/F, E168, 166-168 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels
with shareholders and investors. Apart from publication of
quarterly, interim and annual reports, press announcement
and release, updated and key information of the Group are
available on the Company’s website. The Company’s website
offers communication channel between the Company and its
shareholders and investors. The Company’s registrars serve the
shareholders in respect of all share registration matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year.

Pursuant to Rule 17.102 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has published its memorandum of association and articles of
association on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B AN RS

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF
SINO SPLENDID HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino
Splendid Holdings Limited. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to
131, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirement and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

VRS TR

FREETER
FARETFEERERMNERHE R
RUBE_FT—+tFT_A=+—HBLHF

consolidated financial statements for the year ended EHRAUBEHRENBERZASTENSIE.

31 December 2017. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
BRBEITER

Revenue recognition

W 25 2 SR

Revenue of the Group from travel media includes
income from management fees, registration and
exhibitor fees on the various events and conferences
organised by the Group.
EEERERBZERBE SSEEERTREH
rkeZzERE BLEBENZ2RERA-

Revenue from these sources are recognised upon
completion and delivery of services, in particular
when events and advertisements are completed.
Some levels of judgements are involved in
determining the timing of completion. The payment
have been received from customers but yet to be
recognised as income because the abovementioned
conditions were not met, such amounts will be
recognised as deferred revenue. Deferred revenue
will be recognised as revenue upon completion and
delivery of services.
ZERBRORER TR ERNRBIE  LEER)
B MBS E 5 R R - 0B E S AR B R R
AETEMMFE BB 5P WA B R k&
R ARZERADRERBEA  ZFRIBAHERRE
FE U 28 = 3R KT UK 2 5 10 T2 AR I XA R 755 1R R AR A MK

Ny
S o
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMMESTNMEEZSE

A component auditor was engaged on the Singaporean
subsidiary and relevant audit procedures were done
by the component auditor on such item. In reviewing
the audit working papers of the component auditor,
particular attentions were placed on the following
issues:

MRS B ERE A EAHINEMNE AR
AesZBER TKRAEBEEARERF REMAK DX
BEIES THEERE RALABIATEE:

—  We evaluated and tested the relevant information
technology (“IT”) and manual internal controls
over the accuracy and timing of revenue and
deferred revenue recognised in the financial
statements.

— BAAERAFBEEREE (EMER]) AR
Eﬁ%i&iﬁ&%@ﬂ&é&?ﬁﬁ%ﬁéE’\]Z’Eﬁﬁ’l‘i&ﬁ%F'EﬁE’\J
N ER 12 o

—  We tested, on sample basis, the cut off for the
Group's services performed to ensure the revenue
were properly recognised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy, including but not
limited to the review of services contract, progress
for services performed at financial year end date,
completion dates of services and the amount of
deferred revenue recognised;

— HAHBONE B KB ATIE MRS A B L
BREERE BERENSHRRZSER B
BEARREBERBEO RYBRFELEEBRHER
BHEE RENTKEHLRDERRERENE
B

—  We tested, on sample basis, on the completion
date of services performed with reference to
magazines issued and events organised from
public sources;

- R2EZANFESHNETIZRMEENEERED &
PR AR E RGN TR B
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Key Audit Matter
BREEITER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets

BAERETVEENRERNE

We had identified business combination and
impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets as a key audit matter because significant
management judgement was required to determine
the key assumptions including estimated future
income, operating margins and discount rate, etc.
and the amounts involved were significant.
EECHEBAHARBEREN EENRE G
JImERESAEH RASBEMTRAREA 2
EMNBRRUREEERBRACERBELAEH
By R BEAKN -

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

How to matter was addressed in our audit

BMWEANTEREZEE

We evaluated the timing and appropriateness of the
accounting treatment and the amount of consideration
of the acquisition based on the contractual agreement
and the results of valuation prepared by management
and valuer;

EEERNAABBBAREERERGEMAEEZ HELS
RMFAHERBFENSTRERKESENRRELE

i

We obtained cash flow forecasts relating to the
CGU prepared by management and approved by the
directors of the Company;
EENGH EQREEERUENEFHEFHAERS
ELBM RS RETA

We discussed with management and independent
external valuer engaged by the Company in relation
to the methodology, basis and assumptions used in
arriving at the forecasts (e.g. estimated sales growth
rate and discount rate etc.) to determine whether the
methodology and assumptions used were reasonable;
We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reliance of the input data used; and

FEFEEEEN EQRZEMNBEIINEGERME
BIRRIFTER M IE  EERRR (WEEFHEERX
LEERERF)RAT® AHEMERTDEMBRES
éﬁ&%%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁk%%%ﬁﬁﬁ&
s &

We evaluated the competency of the independent
external valuer taking into account its experience and
qualifications.
BEERFRBUIBHEMNERNELR FHHE
BsrERE T
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
the consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances,
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

we determine that a matter

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Siu Jimmy with practising
certificate number P05898.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

21 March 2018

e Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSSAND OIHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ceBmkHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=F—+F+=-HA=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat FET FET
Revenue =3 6,7 93,121 100,185
Cost of sales $HE A (48,456) (51,717)
Gross profit E A 44,665 48,468
Other income, gains and losses EAMUA - Pz M EiE 8 (187,632) 159,503
Selling and distribution expenses $HE R DK AR (14,490) (14,764)
Administrative expenses THAX (48,862) (48,038)
Finance costs B & B AR 9 (2) (96)
(Loss)/profit before tax BT (B18) % F (206,321) 145,073
Income tax credit/(expense) FreEmiEe,/ (%) 10 26,433 (29,873)
(Loss)/profit for the year FRN(ER) JnF 11 (179,888) 115,200
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) HthtZHEW A~ (BIxX)
Items that may be reclassified HETRENSBEEREZ
subsequently to profit or loss: BHE:
Exchange differences on translating BREBIEB ERZR
foreign operation 4,736 (2,019)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) ~ FREMEEMBA  (FAX)
for the year 4,736 (2,019)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income FR2ME(BAX) BWALE
for the year (175,152) 113,181
(Loss)/profit attributable to: G (E) a7
Owners of the Company RARFEEA (179,888) 115,200
Non-controlling interests FEEIR A - =
(179,888) 115,200
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income  BE{EZ2ME (BX) /WABE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARFEEA (175,152) 113,181
Non-controlling interests FEEIR o — =
(175,152) 113,181
(Loss)/earnings per share Bk (FB) BF 15
Basic (HK cents) B GBI (46.62) 35.83
Diluted (HK cents) #58 (BAL) N/A N/A
T8 A i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e ISR ]

As at 31 December 2017 R=—ZFE—+F+-FH=+—H

2017 2016
—EB—tE —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k23 FET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER 1Y e 16 1,737 1,876
Goodwill GEES 17 5,161 5,161
Intangible assets mEEE 18 16,717 24,243
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 20 65,437 62,490
89,052 93,770
Current assets REEE
Accounts receivables JE LK BR 3R 21 26,964 23,387
Prepayments, deposits and FENFRIE R REM
other receivables & W38 4,397 2,241
Loan receivables FEWE R 22 9,178 =
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBEKRE 23 13,369 243,893
Bank balances and cash RITEBERS 24 111,901 80,980
165,809 350,501
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payables JRE 5 BR R 29 2,653 3,471
Other payables and accrued liabilities HEENRBRETEE 34,586 32,276
Deferred revenue iR N A 1,258 268
Tax liabilities eI BIE 1,619 3,324
40,116 39,339
Net current assets FREBEE 125,693 311,162
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABER 214,745 404,932
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEEE 28 2,757 30,328
Net assets FEE 211,988 374,604
Capital and reserves R K %
Share capital A& A< 25 3,858 3,215
Share premium and reserves B0 s B R A 206,101 369,360
Equity attributable to owners of ZANY/NCIES P DN g
the Company 209,959 372,575
Non-controlling interests AR E R 2,029 2,029
Total equity HRARE 211,988 374,604
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on R-ZZE—NF=ZA_+—H KEEe#t
21 March 2018. e N SR T o
Chow Chi Wa Yang Xingan
BAEE BEZ
Director Director
EZE EE

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES #}J EQ%T%
4= A e > 1

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

Capital Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Goodwill  redemption Translation Retained controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve Reserve funds reserve profits Subtotal interests Total
Note (a) Note (a) Note 3(b)&17 Note (h)
g%
Ra  BBEE  BARE  HERE  BERR fifie EXRRE  REEN Nt FERER £
W@  WE@ HE0RY7 HEE b
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FEr AT AT AT FAT AT AT AT AT AT FEr

At 1 January 2016 RZE-~"%-A-A 64,304 - 755 (31,193) 11,690 19,025 45,287 149,526 259,394 2,029 261,423

Profit for the year ERgEF - - - S S S S 115,200 115,200 = 115,200

Other comprehensive income ERAMZARA

for the year - - - - - - (2,019 - 2,019 - 2,019

Total comprehensive income ERRENALE

for the year - = = = = = (2,019) 115,200 113,181 = 113,181
Capital reorganisation BRER (61,089) 61,089 - - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2016 and

1 January 2017 3215 61,089 755 (31,193) 11,690 19,025 43,268 264,726 372,575 2,029 374,604
Loss for the year = = = = = = = (179,888) (179,888) = (179,888)
Other comprehensive income imﬁf@@&)\

for the year - - - - - - 4736 - 4736 - 4736
Total comprehensive expenses ERTERXEE

for the year - - - - - S B e (751) - 718

Placing of shares EERH 643 11,893 - - - - - - 12,536 - 12,536

At 31 December 2017 RZE-t§+-A=1-A 3,858 72,982 755 (31,193) 11,690 19,025 48,004 84,838 209,959 2,029 211,988

Note a:  Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2010 Afita: RERESHEAFE(ZZE—ZTFE
Revision as amended from time to time), the share premium R R ZK _JHX 14 %
and capital reserve of the Company may be applied for BRERGEEA HEIED KK E
payment of distributions or dividends to shareholders of BREFAARRR (IRER]) -ER
the Company (“Shareholders”) provided that immediately BoRKEZREEHE  KAARE
following the date on which the distribution or dividend is REBEBBREP NP2 ER-
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Note b:  Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for foreign  Afi#b: WRIFEAREPEARKLME ([
investment enterprises (“FIEs”) established in the People’s B TERES)RILZIBRED
Republic of China excluding Hong Kong (the “PRC”), a ¥ (MR ECEDZHEAEER
certain portion of the FIE’s profits is required to be transferred RO SR ERCE 2E T RAESE
to reserve funds which are not distributable. Transfers to BETAI DR FHEE AN ERBEGHF
this reserve are made out of the FIE’s profits after taxation BB ORBEANFECEZ
calculated in accordance with accounting principles and SR EAEBBERO([FEARE
financial regulations applicable to PRC enterprises (“PRC TR .ﬁ'kk Wﬁ&ﬁ 2B
GAAP”) and shall not be less than 10% of profit after taxation ?é)ﬁ?iﬂ* SERBEFEAR
calculated in accordance with PRC GAAP. No such transfer g5 EEIJJEJZWR&/MIJZMO/O
was made in either year as there was no such profit after tax HRAZFELEKRBIERELE
from the FIEs in either year. ZBRBR N BN & FELEE

TTHRBRER-
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/-ﬁ IE:%/)ILE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

2017 2016
—E—tF —F-RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
(Loss)/profit before tax BrELRT (E518) % A (206,321) 145,073
Adjustments for: A
Amortisation of intangible assets | A = 7,526 3,596
Bank interest income RITREHA (5) (22)
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ BBERRBITE
equipment 709 828
Finance costs & B 2 96
Impairment losses on accounts receivables [ U8R 552 i (E &5 18 - 805
Loss on disposal of held-for-trading HERFEEREZER
investments 56,929 8,681
Fair value change on held-for-trading BEEERECAREE
investments 171,172 (164,229)
Dividend income on held-for-trading BEEEREZKREBA
investments - (4)
Loss on derecognised of available-for-sale  #|EFERAIHHERE 2 BE
investments - 463
Investment income on available-for-sale AHEHERE ZREWRA
investments (37,694) (3,083)
Operating loss before working LEEREHAI KL ER
capital changes (7,682) (7,796)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts PN BR SR (38 40) R
receivables 3,577) 161
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TR FRIR 1R R E At FE W R IR
deposits and other receivables (Em) Imd (2,156) 1,015
Purchase of held-for-trading investments ~ BEERFEEERE (43,225) (7,661)
Proceed from disposal on held-for-trading i &35 {EE B & FT1S 8
investments 45,404 7,085
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payables — FEfFERZR (R 4) 180 (818) 105
Increase in other payables and E th JE T RUIE R JE 5T B E 1S 00
accrued liabilities 2,310 3,900
Increase in loan receivables JE U & FR 1 hn 9,178) -
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue EIE YR 51 0, O 990 (12,416)
Cash used in operations KEXBMAZRS (17,932) (15,607)
Singapore taxes paid, net BT IR A IR - R R (2,843) (2,230)
Net cash used in operating activities REXBHMACREER (20,775) (17,837)
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(:CN%S()LH)AJE[)STAJEAAEP(F()F(LASFiFlI)VVS
an\ IE%/)ILE%‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=F—+F+=-HA=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHZHERE
Dividend income received from ATt H B E 2 R B WA
available-for-sale investments 37,694 3,083
Proceeds from capital return of AHEEREERIREZ PIGHIA
available-for-sale investments 722 20,043
Interest received =R @Y 5 22
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of W HE — R B A 5] 240k P UL RS
cash acquired (note 30) B (MiE30) = (19,077)
Dividend received from held-for-trading BERFIEEERERS
investments - 4
Purchases of available-for-sale investments 8% B Al H &% & (3,669) (33,384)
Purchase of intangible assets BERTEE - (5,000)
Purchases of property, plant and BEME HELZE
equipment (520) (1,128)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEHHME (A 2R FE
investing activities 34,232 (35,437)
Cash flows from financing activities METHZRERE
Net proceed from placing of share B & B 10 FT 1S SOIBEF R 12,536 —
Interest paid =AY (2) (96)
Cash generated from/(used in) METBHRE (A ZES
financing activities 12,534 (96)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRASESEYEM (RD) FHE
cash equivalents 25,991 (53,370)
Cash and cash equivalents RENZRERREEEY
at beginning of year 80,980 136,864
Effect of exchange rate changes on EXEHEHRERESEBY I E
cash and cash equivalents 4,930 (2,514)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year REZKZHERREEEY 111,901 80,980
Represented by: A
Bank balances and cash RITEBERE 111,901 80,980

RESRRE R AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are (i) travel media operations
with provision of advertising services through the internet
and travel magazines, event organising services and
magazine publication; (ii) provision of contents and
advertising services in a well-known financial magazine
distributed in PRC; (iii) investment in securities and (iv)
money lending.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

a. New and amended Standards and
Interpretations issued that are applicable to
December 2017 year-end
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for an accounting period that
begins on or after 1 January 2017:

Amendment to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative;

Amendment to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised losses; and

HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs,

2014-2016 Cycle

The amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to
make disclosures that aim to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities. The application of the amendments
has not had any material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
— CONTINUED

a.

New and amended Standards and
Interpretations issued that are applicable to
December 2017 year-end - Continued

The amendments to HKAS 12 clarify when unrealised
losses on a debt instrument measured at fair value
would give rise to a deductible temporary difference
and how to evaluate whether sufficient future taxable
profits are available to utilise a deductible temporary
difference.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs (2014-2016 cycle)
include an amendment to HKFRS 12 that clarifies that,
when an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture
or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint
venture or an associate) is classified (or included in
a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets held for
Sale and Discontinued operations, it is not required
to disclose summarised financial information for that
subsidiary, joint venture or associate, as required by
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities.

The Group has not early adopted any new or revised
HKFRSs that are not yet mandatorily effective for the
current year. The description, and potential effects
of the application if known, of those new or revised
HKFRSs are disclosed in Note 2(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESRRE R AR

%mﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

/\IJ J ) i IIE

a. BRAR-E—tHF+ZAXK

ZEEMIMET R LIEITER
RRE-&

ER G ERFE125 2 BT A%
BUARAAEFEZBEREIAZER
SR EEAUREATERNER
EBRINAFERETERAAR
FE SR A AT AR K S AT HE 40
BF =58 o

BEMBRELEN _—_FT-—HEFERE
—E-AFRMZEFENERR
M BHRELRF125 ZEFT
Ao %A ET AR E - fin B 88 10K
BRr AEERAWMELALZ
o (HEREEEERBLER
Az ) RIBEE B MR
SRANES KA ELEHFRBE
EREILZELTER (KFT AL
EHRBDBE/)FIELE  AIE
BEFEREESMEHREERE12
BRAEMERZ ERREREZ
fEAR &2 EEREZE QA

ZHBERBE-

7N 5% [ 3F 48 12 BT ER A AR (AT I AN AR
JZ 1) R 98 il AE 2 2 # AT s AR HE RT
BREWBMEER - ZFHAT R
RIEFT B LW B RS ER 2 it
MERRZEERE (MEX)
BRENEE B RERME20D)

— T FFR @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 2 =%

2. ADOPTION OF HONG

—tF+ A=

KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

— CONTINUED

b. New and amended Standards and

Interpretations issued
subsequent to Decem
may be adopted early

The Group has not applied any of the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet mandatorily effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15 and
amendments to
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23

that are effective
ber 2017 year-end, but

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Leases?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2014-2016 Cycle*

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=F—+F+=-HA=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. MEREMBHREE JJ ([ &
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BMBREEA]) —&
— CONTINUED
b. New and amended Standards and R-ZB-—tFt+ZAREE
Interpretations issued that are effective o (’|‘E AJREIRATERAN) 2 E
subsequent to December 2017 year-end, but ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁzﬂgﬁﬁﬁu}i
may be adopted early — Continued B-&
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after TR NEFE-A-BHZE
1 January 2018 5 46 B £ 2 B FRl AR Ak o
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after : —E-NF-A-BAHKZE
1 January 2019 ﬁaﬂﬁ%ﬁifﬁﬂﬁﬁixﬁl
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date ’ BETAHMRZERARNEE
to be determined HARE A R
4 For those amendments that will become effective for fOBRZE-NFE—H— EWZ
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 iﬁ?ﬁ%m FRERBAERZES
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BB BRI FE IR
BIA
HKFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for a) BB B RELERNFIFR S Aa)
classification and measurement of financial assets, b) CRMEESDBERFE b 2@E
impairment of financial assets and c) general hedge ERENc) —REPGA 2B
accounting. e
Specifically, with regards to the classification and LHE REemEEDBELE
measurement of financial assets HKFRS 9 requires all imE - &EMB&REEREIHR
recognised financial assets that are within the scope ERFEMBHRESELFIFE
of HKFRS 9 to be subsequently measured at amortised EANMAEC AT REERER
cost or fair value. Debt investments that are held REBHNAIRIAEFE-BF
within a business model whose objective is to collect RUBMAEHNRRENEBHRA
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual FEREERAELNRES REHV L
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and RXNARE REREERNEH T
interest on the principal outstanding are generally ENEBRE —RNEEES
measured at amortised cost at the end of each of the AAHRREERAAE-BREAR
subsequent accounting periods. Debt investments that RIKKBMEHNRERREESR
are held within a business model whose objective is BEZEBEREAPHE Z2EBK
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows B ARE NIRRT R
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual TREAREEREFEHERRKR
terms that are solely payments of principal and interest B —REOREBEMEERA
on the principal amount outstanding, are generally BRAREIRZAXGE-AE
measured at fair value through other comprehensive HiBEHRERBRARENEER
income (FVTOCI). All other debt investments and SHHREARBETE LN
equity investments are measured at their fair value at REFBM B RELENFSR B
the end of subsequent accounting periods. Further, BAMEH A MEEEN 42
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable EBAZ2FBRARE (W IERFE
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value BEENERABTEMBHRELE E'J
of an equity investment (that is neither held for trading 3MWB T KRB S O ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
nor being contingent consideration recognised by an FAREB)2ERAARERZS ﬁﬁ
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS —MRENEBERAERKR WA
3 applies) in other comprehensive income, with only Mi&iﬁﬁuu&ﬁ@: 2 ‘|"&fﬂﬁ
dividend income generally recognised in profit or & YT gEM O RERR-
loss and the cumulative fair value changes will not be
reclassified to profit or loss upon derecognition of the
investment.
FEERRRERBRLT —tFEH @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

— CONTINUED

b.

New and amended Standards and
Interpretations issued that are effective
subsequent to December 2017 year-end, but
may be adopted early - Continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Continued

With regards to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of a financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of
such changes in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss is
presented in profit or loss.

With regards to impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 has adopted an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model required
under HKAS 39. In general, the expected credit loss
model requires an entity to assess the change in credit
risk of a financial asset since initial recognition at each
reporting date and to recognise the expected credit loss
depending on the degree of the change in credit risk.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMBEBUMBEHREER ([F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHMBEBREERN]) —&
— CONTINUED

=5

R-B—tHF+ZAKRRE

b. New and amended Standards and

Interpretations issued that are effective
subsequent to December 2017 year-end, but
may be adopted early — Continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Continued

With regards to the general hedge accounting
requirements, HKFRS 9 retains the three types of
hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in
HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for
hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and
the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced
with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also
no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements
about an entity’s risk management activities have also
been introduced.

HKFRS 9 contains specific transitional provisions for
(a) classification and measurement of financial assets;
(b) impairment of financial assets; and (c) hedge
accounting, please refer to HKFRS 9 for details.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

Interpretations issued that are effective
subsequent to December 2017 year-end, but
may be adopted early - Continued

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers — Continued

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, HKFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMWE B EREER ([FHF
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHMEHREER]) —&
— CONTINUED
b. New and amended Standards and b. RZE—tH+ZAKREHE

H(HETRERARM) 22
BT REETEA KR
E_IIE

BB B EERE 159K
BEFEHNZ A —&
BBV BHRELNF155 2 %0
RASERAERHERNZTFE
EAHERIBRE WA TR
Rz ERERR I
FEmAMBERES ZKRE-
HEgm = 2 &R AR =
2 BELZE:

/

il

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer F—4 BAERFIFIMZELN

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the F_F: BRIAHNTZEOELE
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price E=F BEXRHE

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the FNY: BRXHEIEERAOT
performance obligations in the contract ZBREE

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity FRT: RERBTKBHELR

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

HKFRS 15 contains a number of transitional provisions
as well as practical expedients to help preparers so
through the transition. Please refer to HKFRS 15 for
details.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z =%

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
— CONTINUED

b.

New and amended Standards and
Interpretations issued that are effective
subsequent to December 2017 year-end, but
may be adopted early — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease
guidance including HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

Specifically, the right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any re-measurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments.
Furthermore, the classification of cash flows will also
be affected as operating lease payments under HKAS
17 are presented as operating cash flows; whereas,
under the HKFRS 16 model, the lease payments will
be split into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing and operating cash flows
respectively.

With regards to lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or
a finance lease.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 requires extensive disclosures
in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 =—F—+#F+=-HA=+—HIFFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMBERMBREED ([F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BMBRELEA]) —&
— CONTINUED
b. New and amended Standards and b. R=FE—tF+=-ARELE
Interpretations issued that are effective % (’ﬁjﬁbkﬂu Rz
subsequent to December 2017 year-end, but T 0 37 5T B RS T E A K 52
may be adopted early - Continued B-&
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification BIBER & BRI FE 25952
and Measurement of Share-based Payment EET R R G BB 5
Transactions 5<\ L5 A ERE
The amendments clarify the following: ZEE uTZFstJ LanR
e In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled e RN 1E§+DAEE§?$§L/\H§T§}
share-based payment, the accounting for the effects ﬁﬁ%ﬁ RN HER

of vesting and non-vesting conditions should
follow the same approach as for equity-settled
share-based payments.

Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to
withhold a specified number of equity instruments
equal to the monetary value of the employee’s
tax obligation to meet the employee’s tax liability
which is then remitted to the tax authority, i.e.
the share-based payment arrangement has a ‘net
settlement feature’, such an arrangement should be
classified as equity-settled in its entirety, provided
that the share-based payment would have been
classified as equity-settled had it not included the
net settlement feature.

A modification of a share-based payment that
changes the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled should be accounted for as
follows: the original liability is derecognised. The
equity-settled share-based payment is recognised
at the modification date fair value of the equity
instrument granted to the extent that services have
been rendered up to the modification date. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the
liability at the modification date and the amount
recognised in equity should be recognised in profit
or loss immediately.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z =%

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
— CONTINUED

b. New and amended Standards and
Interpretations issued that are effective
subsequent to December 2017 year-end, but
may be adopted early — Continued
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

This Interpretation addresses how to determine the date
of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to be used on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The Interpretation
concludes that the date of the transaction for the
abovementioned purpose is the date on which an
entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments

This Interpretation clarifies how to apply the

recognition and measurement requirements in HKAS 12
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which is a collective term for all individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange.

(b) Functional and presentation currency

Other than those subsidiaries established in the
Republic of Singapore (“Singapore”) of which the
functional currency is Singapore dollar (“SGD”), the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the
same as the functional currency of the Company.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods.

All amounts are presented in Hong Kong dollar thousands

(“HK$'000”) in these consolidated financial statements,
unless otherwise stated.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHTHEUME-&

POLICIES - CONTINUED

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

EESRT BRIV T

@ EBREHRGEEEE

(@) Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to
the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of
the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in
equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
such non-controlling interests even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 =—F—+#F+=-HA=+—HIFFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTTHREUME-&
POLICIES — CONTINUED

(b) Goodwill (b) EHE

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to

1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the acquisition
date is before 1 January 2005 represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
relevant acquiree at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January
2001 continues to be held in reserves, and will be
transferred to the retained earnings at the time when
the business to which the goodwill relates is disposed
of or when a cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the
goodwill relates becomes impaired.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on
acquisitions of new assets and operations of another
entity after 1 January 2001, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and
such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the CGU unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired (see the
accounting policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after

1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1 January
2005 was recognised as an asset and initially measured
at cost, being the excess of the cost of the acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the Group’s
interest in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess was
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

4. FESHBRBE-—E
(b) BE - &

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

(b) Goodwill - Continued

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after

1 January 2005 — Continued

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTTHREUME-&
POLICIES — CONTINUED

(c) Subsidiaries (c) B2 &)
A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company B AR RAR AR HEITEE
is able to exercise control. The Company controls HHEZERE R i TH =HE
an investee if all three of the following elements are E2 B IR AN QR A
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights, WIRE T R E L TR
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to KB R E J5 Al & O] R ) A R
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is PSR AR WIRE 1T
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate R ERMAZRReEREIN
that there may be a change in any of these elements of RN - BEZERBRABATRZEE
control. HENEREZARELEES

ZH S EITEN NG

In the Company’s statement of financial position, MARE 2 BB KA - M
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less B QR 2R E R AR EE
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are B(WB)AE-WBRARIZESR
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend BRARNE D W REWZRE A
received and receivable. fR o

(d) Property, plant and equipment d) % HBERRE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less W2 - 28 KRR T LA B AN R H
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated ®ZFFHERRBERSE (W
impairment losses, if any. B) ARk
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its ME KERRBEXABEHE
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the EERKEEHEE CEEENL
acquisition of the items. DN
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s HERANERNRIEE HEREZ KK
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, KBNS RERAAREEBZE
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future BRARGER SERt B 5T ABE
economic benefits associated with the item will flow FHEXERRBLEE (NE
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured ) - #®ERBDY 2 BREE®K
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is IR -FAEHMEERREE
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are BITREELEZMBHAEARE
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the ARERRFAX -

financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

4. TESTBRBE-&
d) M= HERRE-&

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

(d) Property, plant and equipment — Continued

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis. The useful lives are as follows:
Leasehold improvements Shorter of remaining
lease term or 3-5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computer equipment and 3 years
software

Motor vehicles 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 2 =%

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

(e) Leasing

()

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payable are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be finite or indefinite. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses whereas intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible asset is not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continue to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHTHEUME-&
POLICIES - CONTINUED
(g) Revenue recognition

(g WA

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which is at the time
of delivery and the title is passed to customer.

Income from the provision of services is recognised
upon the provision of the relevant services or on a
time apportionment basis over the terms of the service
contracts.

Revenue from travel media includes income from
management fees, registration and exhibitor fees on
the various events and conferences organised by the
Group. The revenue was recognised upon completion
of the events and conferences.

All prepaid fees received from customers are initially
recognised as deferred revenue and revenue is
recognised when the above revenue recognition criteria
are met.

Revenue from travel media also include provision
of hotel accommodation and hotel packages which
is recognised when the services are rendered by the
Group as an agent on a net basis.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive the dividend is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 2 =%

—tF+ A=

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

(g)

(h)

Revenue recognition — Continued

Interest income from bank deposits, loan receivables
and convertible bond, on an accrued basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a short
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial assets; and

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when
they relate to items recognised directly in equity in
which case the taxes are also recognised directly in

equity.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner
in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability
is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=F—+F+=-HA=+—HIFE

(h) BiIE-&

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

(h) Taxation — Continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which it is able to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liability are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTTHREUME-&
POLICIES — CONTINUED

(i) Foreign currencies (i) Hphik

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

(i)

()

(k)

Foreign currencies — Continued

Goodwill and fair value measurements on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of that operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
other income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR BT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

4. FESHBRBE-—&
) BREEREGBE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

() Impairment losses on intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite lives and indefinite lives
are tested for impairment when there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. Intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually
and whenever there is an indirection that the asset may
be impaired by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount; however,
the carrying amount should not be increased above
the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying
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amount that would have been resulted had no CRAEEEMRE CBRESE-
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years.

(m) Financial instruments m) #BITH

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

(m) Financial instruments — Continued

(i)

(i1)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
one of the three categories, including loans and
receivables, available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”). All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They arise
principally through the provision of goods and
services to customers (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual monetary
asset. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including accounts receivables, other
receivables, loan receivables and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy in respect
of impairment loss on financial assets below).

(iii) Available-for-sale investments

AFS investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments is recognized
in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTTHREUME-&
POLICIES — CONTINUED

(m) Financial instruments — Continued
(iii) Available-for-sale investments — Continued

m BB IRE-&
(iii) AR ERE &

AFS financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation
reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss (see accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

For AFS equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

(iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF
4. TEEFBRYUE-E&

m BB IRE-&
(iv) BB 18z KIZ LA 1B

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

(m) Financial instruments — Continued
(iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit

(v)

or loss — Continued

Financial assets at FVTPL are initially recognised
at fair value with transaction costs recognised
as expenses in profit or loss. At the end of the
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising from re-
measurement recognised directly in profit or loss
in the period in which they are arise. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been impacted.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that
investment below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor,
issuer or counterparty; or
- default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

— granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTTHREUME-&
POLICIES — CONTINUED

(m) Financial instruments — Continued
(v) Impairment of financial assets — Continued

m) MBTAE-&
v) EBEEHRE &

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
accounts receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s experience
of collecting payments.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and
directly reduces the carrying amount of financial
assets when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of accounts
receivable, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When an account
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=F—+F+=-HA=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESHBEBRE -

=
POLICIES - CONTINUED
(m) Financial instruments — Continued mBHEITRE-&
(v) Impairment of financial assets — Continued (v) TEHEEHRE &
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent EEEF MBS FEAIE A

periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable

EEREERBERER ?ﬁ?*i

amount can be related objectively to an event ZEHEB REEBEEER
occurring after the impairment losses was Hig iR D HEXRRE

recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

When AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

In respect of AFS equity securities,
losses previously recognized in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is

impairment
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recognized in other comprehensive income and fheE B ERER XRIRE
accumulated under the heading of investments BHEFHET R

revaluation reserve.

(vi) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including accounts payables
and other payables and accrued liabilities) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognized in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the amortization process.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTTHREUME-&
POLICIES — CONTINUED

(m) Financial instruments — Continued
(vii)Effective interest method

m BB IRE-&
(vii) B B F| K %

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

(viii) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Repurchase of the Company’ s own equity
instrument is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company’s own equity instruments.

(ix) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or
when the financial assets have been transferred
and the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition
in accordance with HKAS 39. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

(n)

(0)

Share-based payment transactions -
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is expensed on a straight line basis over
the vesting period, with corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be retained in the share options reserve.

Related parties
(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)

has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

(o) Related parties — Continued

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii)The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHTHEUME-&
POLICIES — CONTINUED

(0) Related parties — Continued (o) BEAL—E

Close members of the family of a person are those K- AL BRREBKEETED

family members who may be expected to influence, or AREZANTHERETERN

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the REERIZATZENEBAR

entity and include: EBRCE I B

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic () ZRALTHFREREBHK
partner; FER

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (i) ZBAATHEREBIREZH
partner; and B2}

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse (i) ZBALTHZBALTHER
or domestic partner. FREBHFHTEA -

(p) Segment reporting (p) PHB/E

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment &S MR B SRR A AT R R

item reported in the financial statements, are identified VE D EIE B M2 RO E HA

from the financial information provided regularly to FTERERFE (&K TH

the chief operating decision-maker, i.e. the most senior EEAB)REARAEE X

executive management for the purposes of allocating MR R EETERD I RKRE

resources to, and assessing the performance of, the FHEE B IS R A o

Group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.

Individual material operating segments are not R BHREM S BERERNL

aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the EDEAE T TFTLAEE BRIEZF

segments have similar economic characteristics and 7 BB LB R IE - A KBt

are similar in respect of the nature of products and EmREHE £ERFLEE -

services, the nature of production processes, the type BEFERSEE RS HEM®

or class of customers, the methods used to distribute SIEEREMN A A REEIRE

the products or provide the services, and the nature of WEE D EMBAU B S E R

the regulatory environment. Operating segments which MEMEZRBrEBGRE X

are not individually material may be aggregated if they FEMBIERNKEDHAI T UG

share a majority of these criteria. g

PEERRBRERARLT — T FER @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - CONTINUED

(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the directors of the Company
(“Directors”) are required to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

(@) Impairment of available-for-sale investments

For the equity interest in private equity funds disclosed
in Note 20, the ranges of reasonable fair value
estimates are significant and the fair value cannot
be measured reliably, therefore they are measured
at cost less impairment. Management judgment is
required in determining the impairment loss, if any. In
assessing the equity interest in private equity funds, the
Directors takes into account the investment’s financial
performance (including such factors as earnings trends,
dividend payments, asset quality and specific events),
the short-term prospects of the investment, the current
and expected financial condition of the investment’s
issuer. Any changes in these estimates may result in an
impairment loss.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5. BEAEG A B R AT FRE
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY M2 EBREFE-&
— CONTINUED
(b) Estimated Impairment of goodwill and (b) BEREERUFEHEH &
intangible assets with finite useful Life FEEZAEHRE
The Group tests annually whether goodwill and REBERBETBRREBFEHHERA
intangible assets with finite useful life have suffered any ERAIEAFRHBILEELETRE
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy. AR -REeEFEMZATREESER
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have RIEEREEAEEE -
been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
(c) Income taxes and deferred taxation (c) FiBEB RIELEKREH
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous AEBANRZERERBHSBFE
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in HM-EETMEHERERAELEXR
determining the provision for income taxes. There HE -FFZR P REFTEMT R &RE
are many transactions and calculations for which MEEEDRTEE MZEEEN
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where BRERBEREIIAGENSEEMN
the final tax outcome of these matters is different ZR ZEEZERTEFLIULETERT
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such HENEHANELENMEHREERE
differences will impact the current and deferred income E
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary FRETHREEEANEBBZRT
differences and tax losses are recognised as MIBEE - DRNEEERRBEARE
management considers it is probable that future taxable S IR FE R T LA P VR B R B 22
profit will be available against which the temporary RRSK D IE BRI 5 IR T SR o A % TR
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the BARRRGAEMER ZEER
expectation is different from the original estimate, such % BB WA G BE PR 2
differences will impact the recognition of deferred ETRIBEE RKIA
tax assets and taxation in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.
6. REVENUE 6. &R
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as REBRARNFEZEXZBONMMAT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Travel Media B % 15 48 70,413 91,382
Financial Magazine B 4 R 22,412 8,799
Securities Investment BHERE - 4
Money Lending WE 296 =
93,121 100,185
FEERRRERBRLT T FFR @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —-F—+F+=H=

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has four (2016: three) reportable segments.
The segments are managed separately as each business
offers different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

i. Engaged in travel media operations with provision of
advertising services through the internet and travel
magazines, event organizing services and magazine
publication (“Travel Media Business”);

ii. Provision of contents and advertising services in a
well-known financial magazine distributed in the PRC
(“Financial Magazine Business”);

iii. Investment in securities (“Securities Investment”); and

iv. Money lending segment provides funds to clients
and receives loan interest income in return (“Money
Lending”).

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are priced with reference
to prices charged to external parties for similar products or
services. Corporate revenue and expenses are not allocated
to the operating segments as they are not included in
the measure of the segments’ profit that is used by the
chief operating decision-maker for assessment of segment
performance.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z =%

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - CONTINUED

78

BA IS SRR M AL

e s = sl 2

DHRBE R -

]
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and ATREAEERAIBED HE D2 &
results by reportable segment: FRENEREDN:
(a) Business segments (a) K5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bz—F—-tH+=A
=t-BLEFE
Financial
Travel Media Magazine Securities Money
Business Business Investment Lending Total
RERBEYE BEREER HHERE HE wct
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET FET
Reportable segment revenue  RENNEF 2

from external customers UREDBEXR 70,413 22,412 - 296 93,121
Reportable segment profity A& H &

(loss) wH/ (BR) 8,887 (8,957) (228,848) 296 (228,622)
Reportable segment assets ARESBEE 73,683 29,007 41,899 9,498 154,087
Reportable segment liabilities A3 520 & & 10,908 27,971 623 49 39,551
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—_Z-—X<"F+=A

=+—HLEFE

Financial

Travel Media Magazine Securities
Business Business Investment Total
REREXEYE HEEERHR RERE At
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Reportable segment revenue ~ REINFES 2

from external customers AREDBLEEEE 91,382 8,799 4 100,185
Reportable segment A& 9 B A,

profit/(loss) (B#E) 19,146 (2,551) 154,110 170,705
Reportable segment assets AmEIBEE 64,855 44,039 275,643 384,537
Reportable segment liabilities 7] % 7 # & & 16,682 19,188 27,959 63,829

RESRRE R AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 =—F—+#F+=-HA=+—HIFFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - CONTINUED 7. DERER —&
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (b) AIMESEERE - EE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities EEREBEZYHE
2017 2016
—E—+F —Z-XF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Revenue B
Reportable segment revenue Al AR R 93,121 100,185
Profit before income tax expense B FT 15 Bt BA < AT R
Reportable segment (loss)/profit ARESE (BE) HF (228,622) 170,705
Unallocated corporate income RAOBMEERA 38,482 2,620
Unallocated corporate expenses RAOBEERX (16,181) (28,252)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before BRETEHBEXAGRE
income tax expense (&8 #F (206,321) 145,073
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 154,087 384,537
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEYD 72,875 22,549
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEEEE 27,899 37,185
Consolidated total assets REmEE 254,861 444,271
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities DEEE 39,551 63,829
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAOMEEEARE 3,322 5,838
Consolidated total liabilities REBaE 42,873 69,667

Reportable segment profit represents the profit
attributable to each segment without allocation of
corporate administrative expenses, corporate directors’
emoluments, corporate interest income and income
tax expense. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision-maker for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than available-for-sale investments and cash and cash

equivalents.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - CONTINUED g
(c) Geographic information
The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the goods delivered or service
provided. The geographical location of the non-current
assets is based on the physical and operating location
of the assets.

PEHER &

(c) hEE R
XEMWEBRAUETIEERTESE
HRF BB D -FERBEE
FHIBMN B NIREEZER KK

EIEE D

AEBZEBREBHNERMMN
IR PN

The Group’s operations and workforce are mainly
located in Singapore and Hong Kong.

TREINAEEKBIBEF 2

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's

(d)

revenue from external customers. EEEOM-
2017 2016
—e-tfE  —TAF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Singapore N 70,413 91,382
Hong Kong BB 22,708 8,803

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
non-current assets.

TRENAKEFRBEEZD

A7 o

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-REF

HK$7000 HK$’000

FHET TFET

Singapore N 712 543
Hong Kong BB 88,340 93,227

Information about major customers

d) TBZEFEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there
was no customer accounted for over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

Bz _Z2—+tFEK_FT— K&
+-_A=+—BHIEE HERT
FPEAREEBLEETEI0% MU E-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hth A -z KEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Dividend income from available-for-sale A HERE ZREWA
investments . . o 37,694 3,083
Loss on derecognised of available-for-sale IR AN ERE 2B
investments - (463)
Bank interest income ]RITH B WA 5 22
Other non-operating income HAFE g WA 2,770 1,313
Realised loss on disposal of HERIEEEREZ
held-for-trading investments BEREE (56,929) (8,681)
Unrealised (loss)/gain on held-for-trading BIEEEREZAEIR
investments (BB = (171,172) 164,229
(187,632) 159,503
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. REMA
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Overdraft interest charged by securities broker & 48 40 W B 2 35 2 %1 8, 2 96
10. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) 10. RSB % (BI%)
2017 2016
—2-tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong BNEATR 1A — & (49) (118)
Current tax — Singapore BOHRFL T8 — 37 b3 (1,089) (3,196)
Deferred tax PR E R IE 27,571 (26,559)
26,433 (29,873)
@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=F—+F+=-HA=+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) — CONTINUED

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

For the subsidiary in Singapore, it is subject to a flat
corporate tax rate of 17% (2016: 17%).

10. TBHER(BAX) &

ERFNERINBEFE ZEHERR
,ﬁmJﬁzms%(_? NE16.5%)
M=EFHE

?ﬁ%ﬁﬂu%‘zZW%“ﬂﬁﬁ% B G
NATE17% (ZF— %\E-W%Mﬁ
M TLIA o

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to REEZEHRAXBREEER LA
the profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit fib 2 [ W &8 & 2 BR T B & 7 8 BR 10
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: I
2017 2016
—E2—tF —E-REF
HK$7000 HK$000
FHET FET
(Loss)/profit before tax BRE AT (B51E) R A (206,321) 145,073
Tax calculated at Singapore flat corporate BB — R B E17%
tax rate of 17% (2016: 17%) (ZE—REF:17%):tE 2
IR (35,074) 24,662
Effect of different tax rate of operation EREBIRAME 2 ZE
in Hong Kong 1,076 (630)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax purposes HEM R & X B RIEF & 461) (141)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TE BB BRI A 2
tax purposes MBTE 7,596 6,115
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences ~ FREER A IR E b5 EFE 2
not recognised MBRE 324 (133)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRBEBE NG E 400 -
Over-provision in respect of prior year EEHRERE (294) =
Income tax (credit)/expense FriE8® (e), X (26,433) 29,873

RESRRE R AR

— L FER @
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BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

11. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

1.5 (BR) #EF
ER(BR) SEHENR/ (ER)

(Loss)/profit for the year is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): T 5| & 18 :
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Operating leases KEHEE 2,366 2,291
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % - e KR EH 2 & 709 828
Amortisation of intangible assets | R EEH 7,526 3,596
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) BTIRA (BRIEESEHE) 23,408 24,402
Retirement benefits scheme contributions ROKAE T ET B K 2,681 2,793
Total staff costs 428 TR A 26,089 27,195
Net foreign exchange gain EIE H U s 211 276
Auditor’ s remuneration % B0 N & 430 594
Impairment losses on accounts receivables & W B R 2 Rt 1B B 18 - 805
12. DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS 12.E5M=
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 6 (2016: 6) ENHEN TR (ZE—XRF 6%8)
directors were as follows: EE2Me0T:
Year ended 31 December 2017 BZ2-F—tH&+=-A=+-—
BLEFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits ~ Share-based scheme
in kind payments Directors’ fees  contributions Total
HE O2MR MR & RIKEA
ENRE  EHZAR Esne HE J53 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Chow Chi Wa ASERE - - 120 - 120
Mr. Yang Xingan BEZRE - - 240 - 240
Mr. Wang Tao FEEE - = 120 = 120
- - 480 . 480
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE:
directors:
Mr. Zhang Xiaoguang KRB LA - - 120 - 120
Ms. Yang Shuyan BRERL - - 120 - 120
Ms. Lee Yim Wah FUELL - - 120 = 120
- - 360 - 360
- - 840 - 840
@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

12. DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS - CONTINUED
Year ended 31 December 2016

122.EEME &
BE-_ZE—A<E+=-H=+—H

LEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits Share-based scheme
in kind payments  Directors’ fees  contributions Total
e ERR WABR AR 7 RIKAE A
EMRa  ERZAX ESHe AR @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT FAET FAETL FET FAET
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Chow Chi Wa BEERE 582 = 120 18 720
Mr. Yang Xingan HERZ%E - - 240 - 240
Mr. Wang Tao IFEEE = = 120 = 120
582 - 480 18 1080
Independent non-executive BUIBTEE:
directors:
Mr. Zhang Xiaoguang REENK L4 = = 120 = 120
Ms. Yang Shuyan BREX L - - 120 - 120
Ms. Lee Yim Wah (appointed on  EHEL T (R=ZF—F
31 March 2016) ZA=1—HEZE) - - 90 - 90
- - 330 - 330
582 - 810 18 1,410

During both years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors,
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group as
compensation for loss of office.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. During
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no share
option of the Company was granted to a director in respect
of his services provided to the Group under a share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in Note 32.

RESRRE R AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS — CONTINUED NREEWE-&
Included in the directors’” emoluments disclosed above, EXFHBECEEHEPREAR A
directors Mr. Chow Chi Wa of the Company receive EEAFERLEBARARFKRDMZBE
emoluments from the Company, amounting to HK$Nil T (ZF—7"% :582,00087T) -
(2016: HK$582,000), part of which is in respect of Hbp#Ho g RERAARG RAWER
his services to the Company and its subsidiaries. No ARMIBE - BN EETRR/EZE
apportionment has been made as the Directors consider that BMERSMOAEBEREMHREEKER
it is impracticable to apportion this amount between their RNRRRMIRT 2 METTH BT 4]
services to the group and their services to the Company. B W EIEL DB

13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13.EEME

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, no director’s emoluments were included. The
emoluments of the five (2016: five) highest paid individuals
were as follows:

AEEBRERRFHALESR LA
BREEFZME AR (ZT—RF:
ER)EaFMALZFHHMET:

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries and other benefits FekHEMmEF 6,341 6,409
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R RAE F T84 3k 391 394
6,732 6,803

The emoluments of the 5 (2016: 5) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

B (ZE-—RF HB)REFHA
TZBME N FTIIAR

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
A# AZ
HK$NIL to HK$1,000,000 T L% 1,000,000 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L 2£1,500,000/% 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7C 22,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T %2,500,000/% 7T 1 =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T £3,000,000/% 7T - 1
5 5

During both years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group as compensation for loss of office.

The remuneration of one (2016: one) senior management
personnel has been disclosed in the above table of the five
highest paid individuals.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

14. DIVIDEND 14. R 2
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final EXSV TEZNEE_T—tFR_
dividend for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. E-RE+TZA=T+T—BIEFEKRR
REARR S -
15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. 8% (BR) BF
The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share RRBIFEBEAREERER (BE)
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BRI TIRE T BIEAE

following data:

2017 2016
ZE—tF —EF-ARF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Loss)/earnings (F5#8]) &7
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of computation ~ FtEtEFRERAF]Z
of basic (loss)/earnings per share (EB#8) /&7 (179,888) 115,200
2017 2016
—EB—tF AN S
‘000 ‘000
FR FHE
Number of shares KRG EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RAEERER (BE)
in issue for the purpose of basic (loss)/earnings & 2 B 817 & i A% HN 42
per share (Note) EE 8 () 385,821 321,521
Note: Bt -
No diluted (loss)/earnings per share has been presented HREBEE_ZT—+tFR_ZT—-RF
because there was no potential dilutive ordinary share in TZA=+—RHIEFEIEEEHTL
issue for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. BEHEEEBRR WA EEIERE
H (B8R BFl-
There were no outstanding share options as at 31 December RZB—ttFR-_FE-—RFTA
2017 and 2016. =t—B BEARTEEBRE-

PEERRBRERARLT — T FER @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% - S RX1E
Computer
Leasehold  Furniture and Office equipment and
improvement fixture equipment software Motor vehicles Total
EMRE
HENELEE HAREE BAERE R84 RE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAT FAET FHET FHET
CosT B
At 31 December 2015and R-Z—HE+-A=+—H
1 January 2016 k=F-~"§—-A—H 1,095 89 415 1,173 809 3,581
Exchange realignments JE 5 A& 32) 3) (10) (126) = (171)
Additions hE = 545 368 215 = 1,128
Disposals & = = = (429) = (429)
At 31 December 2016 and  R=-ZE—~E+-A=+—H
1 January 2017 k=F-t&—H—H 1,063 631 773 833 809 4,109
Exchange realignments ERRAE 89 7 28 366 - 490
Additions nE - - 3 517 = 520
Disposals H& - - - (387) - (387)
At 31 December 2017 RZFT—+F+=-A=+—H 1,152 638 804 1,329 809 4,732
Accumulated depreciation ~ REHTE
At31 December 2015and R=-ZE—AF+-A=+—H
1 January 2016 R=F—x"E—HF—H 1,095 83 285 355 174 1,992
Exchange realignments i 5 % 32) 1 ) (124) M (158)
Provided during the year FRX M - 19 99 551 159 828
Eliminated on disposals HER S - - = (429) = (429)
At 31 December 2016 and  R=-ZE—X"E+-A=+—H
1 January 2017 k=F-+t5—H—H 1,063 103 382 353 332 2,233
Exchange realignments SR 89 7 22 322 - 440
Provided during the year ~ FRAZH - 110 102 338 159 709
Eliminated on disposals i B 4 8 - - - (387) - (387)
At 31 December 2017 RZBE—+F+-A=+—-H 1,152 220 506 626 491 2,995
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2017 RZBE—+F+-A=+—H = 418 298 703 318 1,737
At 31 December 2016 RZBE-—RE+-A=+—-H = 528 391 480 477 1,876
@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=F—+F+=-HA=+—HIFE

17. GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the CGU that is expected to benefit
from that business combination. The carrying amount of
goodwill of HK$5,161,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$5,161,000) related to a new business unit acquired
during the year, as further explained below.

17. 88

REBEHKBZEEIRKERS

REBHERZEFEHRZIE R

CELAEN -BER_ZT—+tF+=

A=+—H®MEKREERS5,161,000/8

T (—Z—7"F:5,161,000/8 T )&

FARBHOTEBEMNER - .%I*E
— BT

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Cost AR

At beginning of the year F4) 5,161 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W b — FEI Bt 88 & &) - 5,161
At end of the year F IR 5,161 5,161
Accumulated impairment losses REtREEE - =
Net book value at end of the year FARKREFE 5,161 5,161

Financial Magazine Business MRBRER

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, goodwill
of HK$5,161,000 relates to the provision of contents and
advertising services business unit acquired as part of the
acquisition of Able Professional Enterprises Limited and its
subsidiary (the “Able Group”) in 2016 as further explained
in Note 30. At each reporting date, the goodwill relating to
this CGU is subject to impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
using cash flow projections to calculate value in use
based on estimates and financial budgets approved by the
Directors. These projections cover a five-year period, and
have been discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 21%
(2016: 14%).

All of the assumptions and estimations involved in the
preparation of the cash flow projection including budgeted
gross margin, discount rate and growth rate are determined
by the Directors of the Group based on their experience and
expectation for future market development.

The Directors believe that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the carrying amount of the unit to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU.

RESRRE R AR

RZE—+tF+_A=+—HBEZ
T-XNFE+-_A=+—8 BEA
5,161,000 T IR T —RFEM
Hﬁlﬁﬁh tNARBEEEERBER
B (E & W EE Able Professional
Enterprises Limited & H [ff & 2 7
([Able &S E ) —EH) FHE—F
Bt AP FE30 e A B HRE HER - 5%
ReEAEMNABNEEEETRE
E\lJl:l_t

ReEABEMMNAIKESEERESE
ERALEZHA R BREENAR
MERAFEFTREAEET %5E
BRERAFHB BEFERA21% (ZF
—NF 14% ) 2 B ATAE IR R ALIR o

RRBSRETE) ElJ,f&Zﬁﬁﬁ{Ej*“
Lt (BREBEENX BRI
RE)DHAAEBESEREBEELR K
HARKMIGERTAHMETE -

EEMEE - TREEEAERKEBEEIER
RZEFMAEAREH I SEHHR T
EXBU s RAEBBNERSES
Bz OEESER-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —-F—+F+=H=

17. GOODWILL - CONTINUED

Travel Media Business

Impairment Testing
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to Travel Media Business and included in reserves.

kol

Travel Media Business and included in reserves  J %

BER SHARER

1+ —HIEFE

17. B8 - &

g3

B 18 8] 7

FURERFEME BERSERIKE
REEH Wat AREEA -

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
31,193 31,193

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the management covering a one-year period, and a
discount rate of 16% (2016: 16%). Cash flows beyond the
one-year period are extrapolated using growth rates of 4%
to 5% (2016: 4% to 5%) over the projected period of five
years. These growth rates are based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and do not exceed the average long-
term growth rates for the relevant industries. Another key
assumption for the value in use calculation is the budgeted
gross margins, which are determined based on the CGU’s
past performance and the management’s expectations for
the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=F—+F+=-HA=+—HIFE

Intangible assets with net book value of HK$13,050,000 as
at 31 December 2017 (2016: 19,576,000) represent contract
backlog arising from the acquisition of Able Group during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Able Group had one contract on hand as at the acquisition
date and expected to terminate on 31 December 2019. As
such, it was considered that this contract could generate
future economic benefits to the Group and thus are
recognised as intangible assets with finite useful life. The
fair value on acquisition is determined by an independent
valuer and the present value technique is employed to value
the fair value of the contract backlog. The expected revenue
and the associated costs are identified for such contract. The
associated direct costs and proportional operating expenses
are deducted from the revenue generated by such contract.
The profits are then discounted by the appropriate required
rate of return to arrive at present values. The discount rate
used for the valuation of contract backlog was 21% (2016:
14%). The contract backlog was valued at fair value as
HK$22,839,000 at the date of acquisition. The contract
backlog is measured initially at cost and subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. The contract backlog was
amortised over the contract period. During the year, the
amortisation of intangible asset was HK$6,526,000 (2016:
3,263,000).

RESRRE R AR

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8. BILEE
Contract
backlog Domain name Total
REREHN /ELEH #at
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET FET
Cost B AR
At 31 December 2016 and R—ZE—X"F+-_A=+—H

31 December 2017 MZE—+tF+=ZR=+—H 22,839 5,000 27,839
Accumulated amortisation Bt
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—XRNE+-_A=+—

1 January 2017 MN_ZT—+%—H—H 3,263 333 3,596
Charge for the year FAZH 6,526 1,000 7,526
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-_A=+—H 9,789 1,333 11,122
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+=ZRA=+—H 13,050 3,667 16,717
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+=A=+—H 19,576 4,667 24,243
Financial Magazine Business MERTRER

BT — t¢+—)ﬂ*+ HERE
¥ 1E13,050,0008 70 ( = F — /N F ¢
19,576,000/ 70) W EF & E B &
TE—+F+_A=t+—HILEE
WHEAble EEFTEERNRTEHRE L

RUEBHE  Able EE A1) T 58
A BEHEBER-_ZE—NLF+=A
Zt+t—HRE-AY ZEHERAE
AAASBEERRLEEN At
EREEERUFHFHNERLE
Eo H&zﬁ%z“ﬂﬁﬂmﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂir
- UWHAREFETERTHE 4
Z@ﬁfﬁo%ﬁé%’ﬂbﬁﬁﬁu&f‘éma%ﬁ
KRB T HETE o 0B B AN R AE e
KERYBZANEEZWET
Brom A ERiZ A @R T O kKB,
W NEHRBRBE-RTHE ﬁzma
FTERZREIREA21%( —ZFE—NF:
14%) e REK A HRUWEE B Bz AR
Bf{H1E 522,839,000/ TR TK A
NP IERAGTE BRI ARR
ST R RETREBETE - RTEK
BHREHNHEAEE - RAFE -
& E# 85 56,526,0008 70 ° (=
T — 5% 13,263,000/ 7T)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — CONTINUED

Domain name

On 21 September 2016, Sino Impact Group Limited (“Sino
Impact”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the purchaser entered into an agreement with Grand Pointer
Limited (“Grand Pointer”) as the seller, pursuant to which
Sino Impact agreed to acquire and Grand Pointer desires
to sell the domain name of “Ecarcycle.com” at a cash
consideration of HK$5,000,000.

The fair value on acquisition is determined by an
independent valuer and the present value technique is
employed to value the fair value of the domain name. The
expected revenue and the associated costs are identified
for advertising services. The associated direct costs and
proportional operating expenses are deducted from the
revenue generated by those advertising services. The profits
are then discounted by the appropriate required rate of
return to arrive at present values. The discount rate used for
the valuation of domain name was 26% (2016: 19%). The
domain name was valued at fair value as HK$5,000,000
at the date of acquisition. The domain name is measured
initially at cost and subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. The domain name was amortised over 5 years period.
During the year, the amortisation of intangible asset was
HK$1,000,000 (2016: HK$333,000).

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

19. AMIBE ARl 2 R
AAREEMBARZ BT :

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Particulars of issued and Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operations paid up capital held by the Company Principal activities
AT/ R
MELAER REEHE DRORAERAZHE KRRz ERERL IRRE
Directly Indirectly
& S
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF A% Zg8-tE -T-R% ZR-tF -TR%
% % % %
TTG Global Limited HK 100 ordinary shares 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% - — Investment holdings
RFBEREERAF i 100REBR 1008 & &% REAZR
TTG Asia Media Pte. Ltd ~ Singapore 100,000 ordinary 100,000 ordinary - - 100% 100% Provision of advertising
shares of SGD1 each shares of SGD1 each and event organising
services and magazine
TTG Asia Media Pte. Ltd #7013 100,008 5K E & 100,000 &R RERERERIBRE LA
MRz EER MR ERR RS
Netplus Media Limited HK 100 ordinary shares 100 ordinary shares - - 100% 100% Provision of advertising
agency service
ERERARLT 3 10REBR 100/ & &R REESRERE
Sino Impact Group Limited ~ BVI 1 ordinary share of 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - - Investment in securities
US$1 each US$1 each
Sino Impact Croup Limited ~ #BEZHE 1RERAEIZTZ REREEIETZ E5RE
BER LER
Nation Wealth Limited HK 1 ordinary shares - - - 100% - Money lending

HEBRAF B REER - i
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

RERBRBENEB QR BITEMES
the end of the year. E

B

PR EERRGHAEFBEE X
EEBRIBREZAKENBLR
Al -EERRREHEMHEBLARZHF
FREEREANITE-

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

RESRRE R AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. TR ERE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FET THET
Unlisted securities: JE LT RS
— Equity interest in private equity funds *E’\M%HXZK%%ZH&LZK
(Note i) W (ftati) 45,437 42,490
— Unlisted share, at cost (Note ii) —FEETRGD R
(Kiazii) 20,000 20,000
65,437 62,490
Note: et -
i. The Group has invested in two (2016: Two) private equity . AEERERBME(ZZ—XRF M
funds as a limited partner: E)AERAESIERBREETARE
A
2017 2016
—E—iF —E-RF
Notes HK$000 HK$000
H et FHET TET
New Horizon Capital, L.P. New Horizon Capital,
(“New Horizon”) L.P. ([New Horizon ) a 16,443 17,057
Whiz Partners Inc. (“Whiz”) Whiz Partners Inc. ([Whiz |) b 28,994 25,433
45,437 42,490
(@) New Horizon is a Cayman Islands exempted limited (@ New Horizon IR ZZEE A 4F
partnership formed in April 2007 and commenced MAKY 2 AERSEREER
operations in May 2007. New Horizon makes direct REBNF UR_TZ+FH
and indirect investments in state-owned enterprises R F153E & - New Horizon B
in the PRC, with a focus on the consumer products, ELRERETPEBEE X
health care, alternative energy, manufacturing industries EINHEBEm BEERE B
and other entities with strong fundamentals and high RBEIR - BiE 5% DA R H A AR BOR
growth rate. New Horizon completed its final closing EHE%1E$Z§EE° New
in June 2007, raising aggregate committed capital of Horizon ® =& ti/\ﬂﬁ—é
HK$3,946,800,000, including the general partner’s SEEHHE %/ﬂi\ﬁ HCGh
commitment of HK$46,800,000. In May 2007, the Group 3,946,800,000% JT - \1%
signed the subscription document indicating its total é%§A7¥<1ﬂ§46,800,0005§ﬁ°5’3
capital commitment to the fund is HK$109,200,000, 2R+ FRA AKEREER
representing 2.8% of the partnership interest. At B PHENES 2 EER
31 December 2017, the Group had cumulatively AAE /3109,200,000 7T+ BI&
contributed HK$108,030,000 (2016: HK$107,922,000). BHE228% R_FT—tF
The remaining commitment paid as at 31 December +TZA=+—RH KXEBRFH
2017 was HK$1,170,000 (2016: HK$1,278,000). %108,030,0008 7T (= F — X

££:107,922,000 7T) - R =&
—+E+-A=+—BXHM2
F g4 HE A1,170,0008 7T (=
T — N4 :1,278,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
— CONTINUED

Note: — Continued

(b)

Whiz is a limited partnership. It supports business
development activities of portfolio companies of Whiz
Asia Evolution Fund which targets Japanese companies
with world class proprietary technology and processes
with the potential for overseas expansion. Whiz's
aggregate committed capital is JPY12,800,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$975,476,000) including
the general partner’s commitment of JPY400,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$30,484,000). The
Group signed the subscription document on 24 March
2014 indicating its total capital commitment to the
fund is JPY500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$38,105,000), representing 3.9% of the partnership
interest. At 31 December 2017, the Group had
cumulatively contributed JPY458,273,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$22,852,000) (2016: JPY407,773,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,376,000)). The
remaining commitment as at 31 December 2017
was JPY41,727,147 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,894,000) (2016: JPY92,227,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,109,000)). The timing of capital
contribution is generally determined by general partner.
The term of Whiz will be six years and nine months
unless terminated earlier pursuant to the partnership
agreement.

RESRRE R AR

20. I HtHHERE-&

Wit —#&

(b)

Whiz 3 —REREETEER
7] E #Whiz Asia Evolution
Fund R EHARBI 2 E¥BER
EE W AEEERBERN
T BEE DETBIMNERZ
BARDA - WhizZ BEEES
/12,800,000,000H [B (A& %
49975,476,0008 7T) ' BIEE
WA ¥ AEIE400,000,000H
(HEEMN430,484,0008 7T ) ° A
EER-_ZT—NWNE=ZA-+MHE
AEZEREXH FPEEHE
® 2 & R EIE /500,000,000
HIE (& M 438,105,000
L) BEBRER 23.9% K=
E—+E+-_A=+—HB &
£ BB K51 £458,273,0008
(& RN #22,852,0007 7T )
—F X% 407,773,000 E
HEN#27,376,000087T) ) °
RZZF—+tF+=-A=+—8"
N ZEE B41,727,147H E
(HBE 1 492,894,000 L) (=
T — X% :92,227,0008 & (48
B 1R 496,109,000 7C) ) o HE
B — AT BEBAET K
FREBEERABHRERL
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

21.

— CONTINUED

Note: — Continued

ii. On 19 September 2016, Heroic Heart Holdings Limited
(“Heroic Heart”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as the purchaser entered into an agreement with Thriving
City Investments Limited (“Thriving City”) as the vendor,
pursuant to which Heroic Heart agreed to acquire 5,000
ordinary shares of US$1 each in the share capital of Novaqua
Holdings limited (“Novaqua”) and its subsidiaries (“Novaqua
Group”), being 10% of the issued share capital of Novaqua
at a cash consideration of HK$20,000,000. Novaqua Group
is principally engaged in the provision of circulating water
treatment system solutions in the PRC based on self-developed
technologies. The acquisition was completed on 30 September
2016.

The investment in Novaqua Group is measured at cost less
impairment as the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that the fair
value cannot be measured reliably.

All of the available-for-sale investments were classified as
non-current assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

20. I ERE-&

Hfet: —#&

i. RZZE—R"ENLA+IALB XRFRZ
2EMBRIISOERERAE ([X
) (ERER)HERKZERRA
AI(T&W]) (ERER)T B
Bt ROREBWREKRDBERER
2R (KB REWB AR (X
NEEE]) A FS5,0000% 5K m@E
1EXETZERKR (AIKNBEDEITR
KZ10%) 3 € & 520,000,000
B KNBEEBEZRF AR EIR
HERB TR HERMZ BERKER
REBARATR - ZREBER T —X
FAA=+HB=EK-

HREEAAEGBFEERZ AR
EEZERROAEEENENE AR
IKF17E R B 2R E KN RUR B &

=
=

MEAHEERERGEMBRRBERA
DERIFRBEE-

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 21. BWER X
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Accounts receivables JE UK BR 3R 29,203 26,948
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts B REEREE (2,239) (3,561)
26,964 23,387

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period is generally for a period of one
month, extending up to six months for major customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
accounts receivable and has a credit control policy to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group has provided
impairment losses on accounts receivables based on
experience of collecting payments.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES — CONTINUED

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivable
net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

21. B IR — &

BREZEZAHREEBME7E MK
REBE 2 ERER KR W0
i

2017 2016

—E2—+t#F —ETRF

HK$000 HK$’000

FHET T

Within 90 days 90H 14,745 16,138
91-120 days 91-120H 1,633 1,884
121-180 days 121-180H 3,815 1,205
Over 180 days and within one year H#iB180F BN —F R 6,771 4,160
26,964 23,387

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an
evaluation scoring system to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by each customer.
Limits and evaluation attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly by senior management based on experience of
collecting payments. Over 56% (2016: 28%) of the accounts
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have the
best credit quality under the credit system of the Group.

Accounts receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default. Accounts receivable
that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on the past experience, the management estimated
that the carrying amounts may be recovered.

Ageing of accounts receivable which are past due but not
impaired:

EENTERAFEE 2/ AEBER
FEREGUFEZSBERFZEEY
ZUEREEFEERE - mREE
EREAEZURLH ETHIEREF
BEZRERTR -BiBES% (ZF
—NF:28%) RBHAITKBEZE
WERIRBEAEB 2 EERGEFT R

RIEEEFR-

REBETRARRE 2 BERR T ERZ
YWEAMRRCHZEFPERE - OB
HERNE BREREZZHAE
ENEERERINEFBER RE
BELR EEEMGAKREERK
[E] o

B 78 BB ROR B 2 8 W R 3k 2 Bk Bk

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E—RF

HK$000 HK$000

FET FAET

Within 90 days 908 & 1,329 9,968
91 - 120 days 91-120H 1,512 1,748
121 - 180 days 121-180H 2,076 2,463
Over 180 days HiE180H 6,771 2,600
11,688 16,779
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES - CONTINUED 21. EWERRX — &
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts: RIZBEBRE2EE:
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FAET
Balance at beginning of the year F )45 ek 3,561) (2,842)
Bad debt reverse ZERFAH 1,620 =
Impairment losses on accounts receivable JEUBR 3R 2 BB 18 - (805)
Exchange realignment ME 5 8 B (298) 86
Balance at end of the year F R (2,239) (3,561)
The Group recognised impairment loss on individual REBBBHMT4m) FIE 2 ST K
assessment based on the accounting policy stated in Note REMNFEEAREER - BE_-T
4(m). No impairment loss has been provided for the year —t+FEF+ A=+ —RIEFELER
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$805,000). BEEBEREE (ZF—/XF :805,000%
JL) °
22. LOAN RECEIVABLES 22. BEWE R
The Group’s loan receivables arose from the money lending AEEBzREERBEREXBEL -
business.
Loan receivables bear interest rate, and with credit periods, EWERZFEREEHHITNE S
mutually agreed between the contracting parties. Fach AW E- BEEFHBEEERRE-
customer has a credit limit. Overdue balances are reviewed BHAGRASREEETHEELR
regularly and handled closely by senior management. I B 32 ©
2017 2016
—E—tE AN
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loan receivables JE W E K
— Current portion - BIEAES & 9,178 =

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017



22.

23.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

LOAN RECEIVABLES - CONTINUED

The loan receivables at the end of the reporting period are
analysed by the remaining period to contractual maturity
date as follows:

2. ERERF—E&E

RERRERERIREAXNDIHA
REBMROMAT -

2017 2016
—E—+t#F —ET—RF
HK$000 HK$’000
FET T

Repayable 1B A
0 to 90 days 0%290H - =
91 to 180 days 912180H - -
181 to 365 days 1812365H 9,178 -
Over 1 year iR —F - -
9,178 -

Loan receivables of HK$9,178,000 (2016: Nil) that were
neither past due nor impaired related to debtors for whom
there is no recent history of default.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

Equity securities, at market value
Listed in Hong Kong

BEAHTITEREZEKE X
9,178,000 L (ZE—RF &)}
BT B E X RNES AR

23. B EEERE

RBEBE LM ZBEARZ EWE

2017 2016
—g—tf  C—F-AF
HK$000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
13,369 243,893

These investments are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. The fair values of all equity
securities are based on their current bid prices in active
market, and they are categorised within level 1 of fair value
hierarchy. The details of fair value measurement are set out
in Note 31.

Changes in fair values of held-for-trading investments
are recorded in “Other income, gains and losses” in the
consolidated income statement (Note 8).

RESRRE R AR

HERERRRBEBBRRREAAE
MEZERMEE-MMARAESFZA
AREDZERERTISHNE B HRE
B UYHBPEARBEFAE—H- 1

REFEZFBHNME

KIEEBEREZ AR BRI ALS
Wk (MEEs) [HaWlA dKamk
gl -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash of the Group comprise cash held
by the Group and short-term bank deposits with original
maturity of less than 3 months. As at 31 December 2017,
bank balances and cash amounting to HK$57,783,000 and
HK$11,071,000 were denominated in United States dollars
and Singapore dollars, respectively (2016: HK$36,180,000
and HK$20,743,000 denominated in United States dollars

and Singapore dollars respectively).

25.SHARE CAPITAL

24. SBITHBEES

AEB s ROTEHREBFESBELSE
ERFEzHesRREINHAIN=
BAZEHETER- R_T—tF
+-A=+—H 8B7&H%H MRS
57,783,000 7t %.11,071,0007% 7T 5
RIAETTRFMFETAR (ZZE—R
% :36,180,000/ 7T %20,743,000/%
TR BIAETT RFTMFEITALR) o

25. R A

Number of shares Share capital

7 & B (&N
HK$’000
FrETT
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE.OVEIT 2 EER
At 1 January 2016 R-_ZTE—X"E—HA—H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Share subdivision (Note a) W tv 48 (Hata) 950,000,000,000 =
Share consolidation (Note a) BB &6 (Hita) (950,000,000,000) -
At 31 December 2016, 1 January 2017 RZE—RF
and 31 December 2017 +=—A=+—8"
—E—+F-A—-HkK
—E—+F
+=-A=+—H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—XE—H—H 6,430,418,460 64,304
Capital reduction (Note a) ARAEIRL (H5ta) - (61,089)
Share consolidation on the basis of 1520/ & AR E{E0.0005% 7T
20 new shares of HK$0.0005 each 2B et
into one consolidated share of FREE.OIE LY
HK$0.01 each (Note a) SO (Hita) (6,108,897,537) =
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R ZZT— X%
+=ZA=+-H8K
—E—+5—H—A 321,520,923 3,215
—Share placing (Note b) — MBS (Hath) 64,300,000 643
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+t&F
+=-A=+—H 385,820,923 3,858
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

25.SHARE CAPITAL - CONTINUED

Notes:

a)

Save as disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 13 January
2016 in respect of a proposed capital reorganization (“Capital
Reogranisation”) which was approved by the Shareholders
through duly passed as special resolution at the EGM held
on 5 February 2016, the Capital Reorganisation had become
effective on 10 June 2016 as details below:

the par value of each issued share of HK$0.01 will be
deducted to HK$0.0005 by canceling paid-up capital to
the extent of HK$0.0095 on each issued share;

immediately after the capital reduction becomes
effective, each authorized but unissued share will be
subdivided into 20 new shares of HK$0.0005 each; and

immediately after the capital reduction and sub-division
become effective, the new shares will be consolidated
on the basis that every 20 issued and unissued new
shares of HK$0.0005 each will be consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.01 each.

b) On 13 December 2017, the Company issued and allotted
64,300,000 shares at a price of HK$0.20 per share by way of
placing pursuant to the placing agreement dated 22 November
2017.
PEERRBRERARLT

25. R — &
a) BRARRBHAE-_Z—X&E—H

T=ZAZBHMKREEIN (REEH
BRER-ZZB-—RE-_FRABEETZ
BRRFRHAE CHAEERXNBBRRE
AIRBRERZEZBEAEMA ([RAE
H1)) BRASEHEHERZZT—REN
HtBER FEMT:

i. BHREHEREBITROZS
R A0.009578 T i FRRE 3%
TR 2 E{E B0.017 7T &l 8
Z£0.0005/8 7T

i, REERAERERE SRE
EERBETZRMOEFMAB20
% & P& E 150.0005%8 7T Z #1 A%
ik

i, B RAHE R & AR G I 4
Wik R B IR 20 B
{£0.00057% 7T 2 B B 17 K kK 5
TEFROEHAE—KRERAEE
0.0 L2 ARG -

RZBE—+E+-_A+=0"4&21
ARERSEA_ZT—+E+—A
“t+ZHZBEEHHE UEEAFR
LA f%0.200 7T 2 B 1% 8 17 & Bt %
64,300,000% % 15 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 26. A A 2 M AR R WK
THE COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR 2 ®RE 65,675 65,675
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 45,437 42,490
111,112 108,165
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BN RIE me R AM
JE W R IE 105 76
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NGIE S 19,661 60,275
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERE 12,112 8,689
31,878 69,040
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accrued liabilities Hfth JE (4 FE R EET BB 1,216 1,471
Net current assets BFRBEE 30,662 67,569
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 141,774 175,734
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital & 7 3,858 3,215
Share premium and reserves B 5 (B e 137,916 172,519
Total equity BrER 141,774 175,734
Approved and authorised for issued by the board of RZEBE-N\FE=AZ+—H RE=
directors on 21 March 2018. FHERRETE-
Chow Chi Wa Yang Xingan
BAEE BEZ
Director Director
o EF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

27.RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 27. K RA 2 #E
Movement in the Company’s reserves: KRBz #EED :
Investment Capital
Share Capital revaluation redemption
premium reserve reserve reserve  Retained profits Total
KRG EE EXfifE REEMRE BARORRE REEF ait
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000
TET TET TET THET THT TET
At 1 January 2016 RZE-"F—-A—H = 755 = 11,690 102,214 114,659
Loss and total comprehensive EREER 2 AR EE
expenses for the year - - - - (3,229) (3,229)
Capital reorganisation BAEH 61,089 - - - - 61,089

At 31 December 2016 and RZE-R"EFZA=F+-HBK

1 January 2017 —Z2-t5-A-AR 61,089 755 S 11,690 98,985 172,519
Loss and total comprehensive FREBR 2 AR AE
expenses for the year - - - - (46,496) (46,496)
Placing of shares R ERH 11,893 - - - = 11,893
At 31 December 2017 RZB—tE+ZA=1—H 72,982 755 5 11,690 52,489 137,916
28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. IR LB 1H
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not R_E—+FR_B-—RF+AH
have any deferred tax assets. The details and movement of =T —B AEETETARELERIE
deferred tax liabilities are as follows: BE-RBEREBBEZHFBEREHR
FEnR
Fair value adjustment on Fair value adjustment on
held for trading investments intangible assets Total
BERERECAAERE BYEECAAERE @t
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

“®-tF ZEF-AF ZF-tF ZFRF CR-tF ZERF
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
FER AT FER TR FE7T TR

At1 January “—F—A 26,560 . 3,768 . 30,328 -
Charge to profit or loss for the year st AERE# K (25,957) 26,560 (1,614) = (27,571) 26,560
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—RHB AR = = = 3,768 = 3,768
At 31 December ®+=A=+-H 603 26,560 2,154 3,768 2,757 30,328

PEERRBRERARLT — T FER @
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29.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —-F—+F+=H=

DEFERRED TAXATION — CONTINUED

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses arising in the PRC of HK$2,086,000 (2016:
HK$2,113,000) and in Hong Kong of HK$239,178,000
(2016: HK$239,178,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. No deferred tax asset has been recognised at
the end of reporting dates in respect of the tax losses due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
arising in the PRC will expire from 2018 to 2019 (2018:
HK$1,638,000; 2019: HK$448,000) while those arising in
Hong Kong will carry forward indefinitely.

T —HIFFE

28.

EERIE &

RBEBRR AEERTPEREED
\%\JFiikibﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁiﬂm 086,000
BT (ZZF— /"% :2,113,000% 70)
$%239,178,000/ 7L (=& — /X F :
239,178,000 7T ) -+ it A] A R #K 85 &%
BREBBIZRARAZRRERD &
F-REBANRPHEAEER BRELTE
B 2R 2R S F SRR - Bt I LR TR A
BEREEMBEEE - FREEZM
HEBREBH_-_T—\FE_ZT—LF
BIHR (=& — )\ % :1,638,000/8 7t :
ZF— JLF 448,000 L) - A B
EEZMIBEERERBAL

ACCOUNTS PAYABLES 29. FE 3 BR =K
The following is an aged analysis of accounts payable BRBEZEREHRARNEEBMENNZEN
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the R BREOMMAT
reporting period:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FET
Within 90 days 908 2,433 3,193
91-120 days 91-120H 74 97
121-180 days 121-180H 10 2
Over 180 days @180 H 136 179
2,653 3,471

The credit period on purchase is generally 1.5 to 3 months.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit time
frame.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

30. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 5 July 2016, Sino Impact Group Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with an independent third party to purchase
100% of the issued share capital of Able Group at a
consideration of HK$27,000,000. Able Group is principally
engaged in the provision of contents and advertising
services in a well-known financial magazine distributed in
the PRC.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of the
acquire as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

30.

g A=t

T e IR RN
% & fff B 2 8 Sino Impact Group
Limited B — R B E = FEI L — 1
WE  LABEAble EB 2 2B 81T
% 7 X (B 527,000,000 JT ° Able
SEXFERERN—FXRFPEEITZA
FUHEHEFTREANTIRESESER
jé%o

KRB R RRE 2 AT EERBE
ZRARETIFIRIMAT

HK$'000
T
Net assets acquired: ERBFEE:
Intangible assets BEREE 22,839
Trade and other receivables B REMEWFKIE 6,056
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 7,923
Trade and other payables B 5 KE MR FRIE (11,211)
Deferred tax liability FEEFRIEEE (3,768)
21,839
Cash consideration HeERE 27,000
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired BWBWBEEE L ARE (21,839)
Goodwill (note 17) e (Hfat17) 5,161
HK$000
T
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WBEEZREERL:
Cash consideration paid BEREERE 27,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired W BEREREERREEEYD (7,923)
19,077

RESRRE R AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —-F—+F+=H=

30. BUSINESS COMBINATION - CONTINUED

31.

The goodwill of HK$5,161,000 was attributable to the
Financial Magazine Business unit acquired and the benefit
of synergies expected to arise after the Group’s acquisition.
The Directors believe that additional business opportunities
may arise to the Group as a result of the acquisition of Able
Group, and this will diversify the source of income of the
Group.

Since the acquisition date, Able Group has contributed
approximately HK$8,799,000 revenue and a profit after
income tax of approximately HK$595,000 to the Group
(excluding the amortization of intangible assets). If the
acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2016, consolidated
revenue and consolidated profit after income tax of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 would have
been HK$113,878,000 and HK$115,908,000 respectively.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$86,000 have been charged
to administrative expenses in the profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT

T —HIFFE

30 ¥ 60— &

31.

25,161,000 T B R E W EE
CISHEERBEMURTESRAEER
ZWEEETEREBEEEHRR MR-
EEHAEWEAbleEB RS AKRER
HREBEIINEE M TEERELRSE
&z WA KRR -

BUE BHE Able EEE AAE
B 5 B 498,799,000/ 7T 2 Wz M4
595,000/% 7T 2 BrR F &% K (81
EBREEHE WMEKBIER_Z
—ARNFE—A—B#L AAEEEZE
—E-RFT+_A=t—HIEFEZ
RAEWEREAKBRTERFE D5
7,%113,878,000/5713&115,908,000/\1
7T|:o

BHE - Z—XRF+_A=+—HIt#F
- B IE EIEA B 2 K 486,000/%8
TEABEERAZITHEY -

BHRITAREXREREE

(a) Categories of financial instruments () ¥HTAEER
2017 2016
—E—tE N
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including Bk e IE
bank balances and cash) (BRERITEAKKRERESD) 152,440 106,608
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 65,437 62,490
Financial assets at fair value BRBERREAAEIE
through profit or loss ZEMEE
— Held-for-trading investments —RHIEFEEKRE 13,369 243,893
Financial liabilities cREeE
Liabilities measured at amortised cost REBHEKAGTEZARE 37,239 35,747
Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments — Continued
The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, accounts receivables,
other receivables, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loan receivables bank balances and cash,
accounts payables and other payables. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Management monitors and manages the financial risks
relating to the operations of the Group through their
degree of magnitude of risks. These risks include market
risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Market risk
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.
There has been no change to the Group’s manner
in which it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business transaction, assets and
liabilities are denominated in HK$, US$, SGD and
Renminbi (“RMB”) and the functional currencies
of the Group’s principal operating entities are
HK$ and SGD. Considering the fact that most of
the groups transactions are denominated in its
functional currency except for sales denominated
in US$, the Group’s exposure to foreign currency
risk arises from sales denominated in US$.

Since HK$ is pegged to US$, there is no significant
exposure expected on US$ transactions and
balances whilst the currency peg remains in place.

RESRRE R AR

31. Bf

(a)

(b)

&

BIAREAARER

MBITREER &
AEBZET2HBHTABREAH
HERE BUEERZ - EEK
KRB BBBEREBAAEIE
ZEMEE BWER RITHE
SRR IR T AR H e A
HIE-ZEMFTEZFBRE
MM ErRE-EREMBETA
MR Rz BB DA BRI R % R R
ZERREINWMT -EEBHZF
REBETEERER BRAK
BRAEMZTABITEERG-

MBRAREEZREREXR

EEERBRRNBREREER
Ko 3R N £ [ 2 5E A B O B A
Rk - ZERBREET SRR (8
EOMER R - B R E B KA E R
2) FEERRMABDEZRAR-

(i) 75 R
AEBYELTHTEMY
N B B SR - | R % BB AR (B A%
MBS HEERR  NEE
cELIEBAEBERARZ R

S P L R

AEBEHRZ BEME
BIAE T ET F KT
RARE (TARE])EE"
MASEETZZEEE I
RRE® RB T MF IR IT -
ZEIREERITFE
SN REBEBXHUED
REEMGHE NEBEMAE
Z SN LB 2R B 3% T AT E 6
&

MR ABITEE T HIE
HERHARRNERZ
B -XTXHRERTEE
X E KR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 3LHMBITAREXARER
RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED — &
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) ¥BEEABEEZRERK
policies — Continued R-#&

(i) Market risk — Continued (i) TH5ER &

Foreign currency risk — Continued

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to a 5% (2016: 5%)
increase and decrease in Hong Kong dollars
against Renminbi and Singapore dollars. 5% is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
outstanding amounts of Singapore subsidiary’s
Hong Kong dollars denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the period end
for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. For a
5% strengthening of Hong Kong dollars against
Singapore dollars, the post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2017 would be decreased
by HK$194,351 (2016: post-tax profit decreased
by HK$56,761). For a 5% weakening of the Hong
Kong dollars against Singapore dollars, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit or
loss.

The Group’s sensitivity to Hong Kong dollars
against Singapore has decreased during the current
year mainly due to the decrease in carrying
amount of Singapore subsidiaries’” Hong Kong
dollars denominated monetary net assets.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing
financial assets and liabilities with a floating
interest rate as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through

its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks and
refunds. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments quoted in the
Stock Exchange.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — Continued
(i) Market risk — Continued

(if)

Other price risk — Continued

The policies to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective. The sensitivity analyses
below have been determined based on the
exposure to price risk at the end of the reporting
period for the Group’s investments held for trading.
A 5% increase or decrease is used as it represents
management’s assessment of the possible change
in price of equity securities. If the prices of the
listed equity securities held in the portfolio had
been 5% higher/lower, the post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2017 would increase/
decrease by HK$668,000 (2016: HK$12,195,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of listed
equity securities. If the prices of the respective
equity securities that are indexed to equity prices
had been 5% higher/lower, the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2017 would increase/
decrease by HK$557,000 (2016: profit for the year
would increase/decrease by HK$10,183,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of financial
instruments held-for-trading investments.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
accounts receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
management considers that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL S1.BMBIAREARAKER
RISK MANAGEMENT — CONTINUED — &
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) ¥BEEABEEZRERK
policies — Continued R-#&
(ii) Credit risk — Continued (i) 15 B /7 2

The credit risk on liquid funds including bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group is exposed to some concentration of
credit risk. The five largest debtors accounted for
approximately 55% (2016: 35%) of the Group’s
total accounts receivables. In order to minimise the
credit risk, management continuously monitors the
level of exposure to ensure that follow-up actions
and/or corrective actions are taken promptly to
lower exposure or recover the overdue debts.

Other than concentration of credit risk described
above, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

(iii) Liguidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the
Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
bank balances and cash and continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

HREFTBERERRES
AREBFASREREFRZ
RITRSBEE BRDE
S (BRRTER)ZEE
R EA MR-

AEBAZEEEZEER
BEFR -AREBAGAE
B 48 e W BR FR4955% (= F
—ARNF:35%) BRITEER
REERKR EEEHEES
REABIZE - IR ENE
WMBETH R HEETE
REEKEBR kB A E
18 o

fr Xtz EERBES
Sh REEI EE M EKE
ERRES -

(iii) & B) & % J7 2
EESRRPELRARERE
RERKRERE ABEEAE
ErEH THEREHES
ErRBHESERER B
Y—EASEZRBELRR
EEEL AEEBFRR
RIOTEB RIS ARTEH
EREAREERSR N
EEREE SRR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 3LHMBITAREXARER
RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED - &
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) ¥BEABEEZRERK
policies — Continued R-#&
(iii) Liquidity risk — Continued (iii) 7o B & T A &
The following table analyses the Group’s remaining TEROMAEEREEZER
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities ABAREZHBABEEREE
provided internally to the key management ctEABRZeRABENBRELH
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity B HIBR AR DR AL
risk. The table has been drawn up based on the B ERN Rz &F B
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities AECRABZCAMRE
based on the earliest date on which the Group can eREMmE -2BEZ
be required to pay. The maturity dates for financial A DREEENEBE
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. iE e
Within Total Total
90 days or  undiscounted carrying
on demand cash flows amount

90H " AUBRBES
RIB/ER FEHE FREAE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
2017 —E—+tF
Accounts payables FE R 2,653 2,653 2,653
Other payables and HAth fE 1 5RIE
accrued liabilities KIERTEE 34,586 34,586 34,586
37,239 37,239 37,239
2016 —ET—RF
Accounts payables JE S BR 7Kk 3,471 3,471 3,471
Other payables and HAth e 1~ 5R18
accrued liabilities REFTAE 32,276 32,276 32,276
35,747 35,747 35,747
(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair (c) kERAAREFEZHKEIA
value
The fair value of other financial assets and financial HmemBdELEsBmABEZAR
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally BNREMSTBEMA TEE
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow X IR S RESTETE -
analysis.
Management considers that the carrying amounts of EBERANGASERELEE
financial assets and financial liabilities not measured ZIEBAREHEZEREER
at fair value recorded in the consolidated financial cRHEBEEEEEBRAEAAEMRE
statements approximate their fair values. Ho
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 2 =%

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED
(c) Financial instruments measured at fair value -
Continued
Based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirely, the fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

Fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived from prices).

Fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (unobservable inputs).
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Assets measured at fair value

The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December are grouped into the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

Level 1
EF—
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Held-for trading investment BIEEEHRE 13,369 243,893

AEBEFRBEARBEFEERBERR

All of the Group’s fair value measurement were

revalued at the end of the reporting period. Bife
There were no transfers of financial instruments ( E- Tt RZFE-R"E+=A
between levels in the hierarchy for the years ended =+—BIEFE- E\M"‘%I,E:%%?&Z
31 December 2017 and 2016. fE] I S B AS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED

(c)

(d)

Financial instruments measured at fair value -
Continued

Valuation techniques and inputs used in level 1 fair
value measurement

Held-for-trading investment were listed equity securities
in Hong Kong, for which the fair value was determined
with reference to quoted bid prices in active market at
the end of the reporting period.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders. As the
Group is in a cash-rich position, the Directors do not
intend to rely on external financing. The Group had no
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
the prior years.

Accordingly, the capital structure of the Group consists
only of equity attributable to owners of the Group,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The Directors review the capital structure of the Group
on a timely basis. As part of this review, the Directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with capital.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

32.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (2013
Share Option Scheme”) on 31 December 2013, which
was approved by the Shareholders at the EGM held on the
same date. The 2013 Share Option Scheme will expire on
31 December 2013.

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant share options to eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth of
the Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible
means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide
benefits to the eligible participants.

According the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the Board
may grant share options to eligible participants as defined
in the 2013 Share Option Scheme and the Board has
its sole discretion considers eligible for the 2013 Share
Option Scheme on the basis of their contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all share options to be granted under the
2013 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval
and adoption of the 2013 Share Option Scheme provided
that the Company may at any time seek approval from
the Shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares
in issue as at the date of approval by the Shareholders in
general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Share options
previously granted under any share option schemes of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
in accordance with such schemes or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as
refreshed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=F—+F+=-HA=+—HIFE

32.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS -

CONTINUED

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the
2013 Share Option Scheme and any of other share option
scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of grant unless such grant has been duly approved by
ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting
at which the relevant eligible participant and his associates
abstained from voting. Share options granted to substantial
Shareholders or Independent Non-executive Directors or
any of their respective associates in any 12-month period
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital on
the date of grant and with a value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved in advance by the Shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 7 days from the
date of the offer upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the Board. There is
no general requirement on the minimum period for which
option must be held before an option can be exercised. All
option shares must be exercised within 10 years from the
date of grant of options.

The exercise price is determined by the Board and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and the (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

The share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’” meetings. During the
year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no option was
granted and exercised under 2013 Share Option Scheme.
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33.

34.

35.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - F—+#F+ - H=+—HILFZF

OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its offices under non-cancellable
operating lease arrangements with lease terms ranging from
one to five years. As at 31 December 2017, the total future
minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

33. R EHEAIE

AEEREMAIBHEECEMELEA
EETHMLAZE HENF—ER%F-
RZE—+tF+_A=+—H8 RBRE
PAREREHERSN 2 RRRE
HEeRBWT:

2017 2016
ZE—+tF —E—RF
HK$7000 HK$000
FHET FHET
Within one year —FR 2,791 1,596
In the second to the fifth year inclusive FE_FEERF
(BEaREWmE) 7,784 -
10,575 1,596
COMMITMENTS 34. &R
2017 2016
ZE—+tF AN S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT TET
Commitment in respect of investment BRERMERAESZ
in private equity funds (Note 20) HHE (A17E20) 4,064 7,387
RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 35. RIKEFGHE

Retirement benefits are paid by an overseas and Hong
Kong subsidiary to its employees who contribute to certain
retirement benefits plans managed by relevant independent
trustees/government authorities. The retirement benefits paid
by the overseas and Hong Kong subsidiary are based on
a certain percentage of its employees’ relevant income in
accordance with the relevant regulations and are charged
to profit or loss as incurred. The subsidiaries discharges
its required contribution obligations upon payment of the
retirement benefits to its designated trustees/government
authorities.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits
scheme contributions totaling HK$2,681 (2016: HK$2,793)
(Note 11). At the end of the reporting period, there are no
forfeited contributions.
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37.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA IS SRR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B —F—+F+=-HA=+1+—HILFEZF

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management consisting of directors
and one employees (2016: directors and two employees)
during the year was as follows:

¥ o MEHE

Salaries and short-term benefits

36.BAEALRS
TEETEASCHE
FR FTEEBE(REEER—%
BE(ZT—AFE BEERWMEE
B))z@MemT:

2017 2016
—B-tF T ARF
HK$7000 HK$'000
FHET FET
3,206 4,689

The remuneration of key management is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of Directors on 21 March 2018.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LR Y

RESULTS

E

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLHFE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—B—t&E C—T—R&E Z—T-HFE Z—E-NF "—E-=F
HK$7000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue (Note 1) BEE (N7
- Continuing operations -BELEER 93,121 100,185 79,184 81,573 93,326
- Discontinued operation -BRIEE = = = = 52,950
93,121 100,185 79,184 81,573 146,276
(Loss)/profit for the year BIEXRFEE (BR) /
attributable to: Al
Owners of the Company PN/NCIEC YN (179,888) 115,200 11,213 3,322 102,556
Non-controlling interests FERfR & - - (15) (37) 8
(179,888) 115,200 11,198 3,285 102,564
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE BERFERESR
INTERESTS
At 31 December
R+=ZA=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—t§f TR —T-—RF IET—WF ZT—=F%
HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FHET FET
Assets BiE 254,861 444,271 296,880 270,161 466,895
Liabilities =L (42,873) (69,667) (35,457) (16,155) (19,214)
Non-controlling interests R (2,029) (2,029) (2,029) (2,044) (2,081)
209,959 372,575 259,394 251,962 445,600
Note 1: M -

Revenue has been re-presented, the internet portal business has been
disposed during 2013, and presented as discontinued operation.

EERBERLCEY EBRBAPIRBUEBER -
T——FHE WINEDRILERS-
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